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FOTHERGILL SEGALE & VALLEY
Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Selectboard

Town of Wolcott

Wolcott, Vermont

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type

activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Wolcott,

Vermont as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which

collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are flee from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes

evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant

accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinions.

Opinions

In. our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all. material respects, the

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business—type activities, each major

fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Wolcott, Vermont, as of June 30,
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2020, and the respective changes in financial position, and, Where applicable, cash flows thereof and

the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other-Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America require that management’ 5

discussion and analysis and the Town’5 proportionate share of net pension liability and Town
contributions 1n Schedule 2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such

information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing

the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have

applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of

management about the methods ofpreparing the information and comparing the information for

consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an

opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us

with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that

collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The Budget to Actual comparison for the

General Fund expenditures in Schedule 1 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a

required part of the basic financial statements. Schedule 1 is the responsibility of management and

was derived fiom and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the

basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in

the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and

reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare

the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional

procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

In our opinion, Schedule 1 is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 11,

2021 on our consideration of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other

matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over

financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the

effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is

an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in

considering the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Resnectfullv submittedv
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TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Our discussion and analysis of the Town of Wolcott, Vermont’s financial performance provides an

overview of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Please read it in

conjunction with the Town’s financial statements which begin on page 10.

Financial Highlights

Government— Wide Statements

0 Net position of our governmental activities increased by $88,125, about 5% compared to a

decrease of $197,474 in the prior year. The net position of our business-type activities

increased by $611 compared to an increase of $7,934 in the prior year.

0 The cost of all of the Town’s programs was $1,909,551 in fiscal year 2020, with no new
programs added this year, compared to $1,751,008 in fiscal year 2019.

Fund Statements

0 The General Fund reported a decrease in fimd balance this year of $32,805 which was $10,650

worse than What was budgeted. This compares to the $6,984 decrease in the prior year.

0 The unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $0 as of June 30, 2020 compared to

$15,579 as of June 30, 2019. The restricted General Fund fund balance was $9,917 and is

restricted for the cemetery, the Veteran’s memorial and the restoration of records. The
committed fimd balance was $49,261 and is for a capital reserve and FY21 expenses. The
nonspendable fund balance of $20,432 consists of highway inventory.

0 The Reappraisal Fund reported an increase in fund balance this year of $8,549 compared to an

increase of $8,496 in the prior year. This results in an ending restricted fund balance of
$65 ,46 1 .

o The Equipment Fund reported an increase in fund balance this year of $27,003, compared to a

$27,010 increase in the prior year. This results in an ending committed fund balance of

$62,735.

0 The Library Fund reported an increase in fund balance this year of $3,840 compared to a

decrease of $2,206 in the prior year. This results in an ending assigned fimd balance of

$22,498.

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement ofNet Position and the

Statement of Activities (Exhibits A and B) provide information about the activities of the Town as a

whole and present a longer-term View of the Town’s finances. Fund financial statements start on
Exhibit C. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the

short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the

Town’s operations in more detail than the government—wide statements by providing information about

the Town’s most significant funds.

Reporting the Town as a Whole

One of the most important questions asked about the Town’s finances is, “Is the Town as a whole
better off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement ofNet Position and the

Statement of Activities report information about the Town as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual

basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of
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TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(Continued)

the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless ofwhen cash is received or

paid.

These two statements report the Town’s net position and change in net position. You can think of the

Town’s net position — the difference between assets and liabilities — as one way to measure the Town’s

financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Town’s net position is

one indicator ofwhether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider

other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the Town’s property tax base and the

condition of the Town’s roads, to assess the overall financial health of the Town.

In the Statement ofNet Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Town into two kinds of

activities:

0 Governmental activities — The Town’s basic services are reported in the General Fund,

including the highway department, general administration and public safety. Property taxes

and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. It also accounts for the purchase of

Town highway equipment and the activity relating to reappraisal of the properties located in the

Town.

0 Business-type activities — The Town charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of

the cost of certain services it provides. The Town’s transfer station is reported here.

Reporting the Town ’s Most Significant Funds

Our analysis of the Town’s major fimds begins on Exhibit C and provides detailed information about

the most significant fimds — not the Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by
State law and by bond covenants. The Town’s two categories of fimds — governmental and proprietary

use different accountng approaches.

0 Governmental fimd — The Town’s basic services are reported in the governmental fund, which

focuses on how money flows into and out of that fund and the balance left at year—end that is

available for spending. This fimd is reported using a measurement focus called current

financial resources, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be

converted to cash. The governmental fimd statements provide a detailed short—texm View of the

Town’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fimd
information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can

be spent in the near fixture to finance the Town’s programs. We describe the relationship (or

differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement ofNet Position and the

Statement of Activities) and governmental fimd in Exhibits D and F that are included in the

financial statements.

0 Proprietagy fund — When the Town charges customers for the services it provides — whether to

outside customers or to other fimds of the Town — these services are generally reported in a

proprietary fund. A proprietary fund is reported in the same way that all business—type

activities are reported in the Statement ofNet Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact,

the Town’s enterprise fimd (a type of proprietary fund) is the same as the business-type

activities we report in the govemment-wide statements but provide more detail and additional

information, such as the statement of cash flows.
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The Town as a Whole

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(Continued)

The Town’s combined net position increased by $88,736 from a year ago — increasing from a balance

of $1,614,299 to $1,703,035. Our analysis below focuses on the net position (Table 1) and changes in

net position (Table 2) 0f the Town’s governmental and business-type activities.

Current and other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Total deferred outflows

of resources

Long-term liabilities

Net pension liability

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Total deferred inflows

of resources

Net position:

Invested in capital assets,

net of debt

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

Table 1

Net Position

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

$ 955,470 $ 509,613 $ 11,650 $ 10,867 $ 967,120 $ 520,480

1,658,582 1,782,383 8,000 8,000 1,666,582 1,790,383

2,614,052 2,291,996 19,650 18,867 2,633,702 2,310,863

34,423 39,703 0 0 34,423 39,703

612,674 469,441 0 0 612,674 469,441

98,877 85,732 0 0 98,877 85,732

242,773 171,321 4,964 4,792 247,737 176,1 13

954,324 726,494 4,964 4,792 959,288 731,286

5,802 4,981 0 0 5,802 4,981

1,045,908 1,312,942 8,000 8,000 1,053,908 1,320,942

75,378 61,602 0 0 75,378 61,602

567,063 225,680 6,686 6,075 573,749 231,755

$ 1,688,349 $ 1,600,224 $ 14,686 $ 14,075 $ 1,703,035 $ 1,614,299

Net position of the Town’s governmental activities increased by about 5% ($1,688,349 compared to

$1,600,224) in fiscal year 2020. Unrestricted net position — the part of net position that can be used to

finance day—to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation,

or other legal requirements — changed fiom $225,680 at June 30, 2019 to $567,063 at June 30, 2020.

The net position of our businesstype activities increased by $611, ($14,686 compared to $14,075) in

fiscal year 2020.
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$ 1,688,349 $ 1,600,224 $ 14,686 $ 14,075 

Total 
2020 2019 

$ 967,120 $ 520,480 
1,666,582 1,790,383 
2,633,702 2,3 10,863 

34,423 39,703 
612,674 469,441 
98,877 85,732 

247,737 176,1 13 
959,288 731,286 

5 ,802 4,98 1 

1,053,908 1,320,942 
75,378 61,602 

573,749 231,755 
$ 1,703,035 $ 1,614,299 

Net position of the Town’s governmental activities increased by about 5% ($1,688,349 compared to 
$1,600,224) in fiscal year 2020. Unrestricted net position — the part of net position that can be used to 
finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation, 
or other legal requirements — changed from $225,680 at June 30, 2019 to $567,063 at June 30, 2020. 

The net position of our business-type activities increased by $611, ($14,686 compared to $14,075) in 
fiscal year 2020. 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

(Continued)

Table 2

Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business—type Activities

2020 2019 Change 2020 2019 Change
REVENUES
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 69,51 1 $ 47,210 $ 22,301 $ 73,443 $ 67,823 $ 5,620

Operating grants and
contributions 520,843 293,092 227,751 0 O 0

Capital grants and contrib. 39,006 0 39,006 0 0 0

General revenues:

Property taxes 1,281,498 1,143,172 138,326 0 0 0

Earnings on investments 13,967 10,161 3,806 19 10 9

Total revenues 1,924,825 1,493,635 431,190 73,462 67,833 5,629

PROGRAM EXPENSES
General gov. and admin. 414,349 554,802 (140,453) 0 0 0

Public safety 344,322 328,933 15,3 89 0 0 0

Highways and streets 970,535 698,936 271,599 0 0 0

Culture and recreation 81 ,120 86,305 (5,185) 0 0 0

Interest on debt 12,721 10,721 2,000 0 0 0

Miscellaneous 13,653 1 1,412 2,241 0 0 0

Transfer station 0 0 0 72,851 59,899 12,952

Total program expenses 1,836,700 1,691,109 145,591 72,851 59,899 12,952

INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN NET POSITION $ 88,125 $097,474) $ 285,599 $ 611 $ 7,934 $ (7,323)

The increase in operating grants and contributions was due to grant fimds received for flood mitigation

and repairs. The capital grants and contributions increased due to fimding for the East Hill Road
culvert. Property tax revenue increased due to an increase in tax rates over the prior year. The general

government expenses decreased fiom prior year due to reduction in grant related expenses. The
highways and streets expenses increased due to the costs related to the flood mitigation and repair

work done.

Governmental Activities

The increase in net position for governmental activities was $88,125 in 2020.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $1,836,700. However, as shown in the Statement

of Activities on Exhibit B, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities

through Town taxes was only $1,207,340 because some of the cost was paid by those who directly

benefited from the programs ($69,511) or by other governments and organizations that subsidized

certain programs with grants and contributions ($559,849).

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the Town’s four largest programs — general government and

administration, public safety, highways and streets, and culture and recreation — as well as each

program’s net cost (total cost less program revenues). The net cost shows the financial burden that was
placed on the Town’s taxpayers by each of these functions.
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Table 2 
Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
2020 2019 Change 2020 2019 Change 

REVENUES 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services $ 69,511 $ 47,210 $ 22,301 $ 73,443 $ 67,823 $ 5,620 
Operating grants and 

contnbutions 520,843 293,092 227,751 0 O 0 
Capital grants and contrfl). 39,006 0 39,006 0 0 0 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 1,281,498 1,143,172 138,326 0 0 0 
Earnings on investments 13,967 10,161 3,806 19 10 9 

Total revenues 1,924,825 1,493,635 431,190 73,462 67,833 5,629 

PROGRAM EXPENSES 
General gov. and admin 414,349 554,802 (140,453) 0 0 0 
Public safety 344,322 328,933 15,3 89 0 0 0 
Highways and streets 970,535 698,936 271,599 0 O 0 
Culture and recreation 81,120 86,305 (5,185) 0 0 0 
Interest on debt 12,721 10,721 2,000 0 0 0 
Miscellaneous 13,653 1 1,412 2,241 0 0 0 
Transfer station 0 0 0 72,851 59,899 12,952 

Total program expenses 1,836,700 1,691,109 145,591 72,851 59,899 12,952 

INCREASE (DECREASE) 
IN NET POSITION $ 88,125 $097,474) $ 285,599 $ 611 $ 7,934 $ (7,323) 

The increase in operating grants and contributions was due to grant funds received for flood mitigation 
and repairs. The capital grants and contributions increased due to fimding for the East Hill Road 
culvert. Property tax revenue increased due to an increase in tax rates over the prior year. The general 
government expenses decreased fiom prior year due to reduction in grant related expenses. The 
highways and streets expenses increased due to the costs related to the flood mitigation and repair 
work done. 

Governmental Activities 

The increase in net position for governmental activities was $88,125 in 2020. 

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $1,836,700. However, as shown in the Statement 
of Activities on Exhibit B, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities 
through Town taxes was only $1,207,340 because some of the cost was paid by those who directly 
benefited from the programs ($69,511) or by other governments and organizations that subsidized 
certain programs with grants and contributions ($559,849). 

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the Town’s four largest programs — general government and 
administration, public safety, highways and streets, and culture and recreation — as well as each 
program’s net cost (total cost less program revenues). The net cost shows the financial burden that was 
placed on the Town’s taxpayers by each of these functions. 
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(Continued)

Table 3

Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services

2020 2019 2020 2019

General government and admin. $ 793,972 $ 554,802 $ 340,236 $ 327,444
Public safety 344,322 328,933 339,888 324,920

Highways and streets 590,912 698,936 430,293 596,696
Culture and recreation 81,120 86,305 73,139 81,255

All others 26,374 22,133 23,784 20,492

Totals $ 1,836,700 $1,691,109 $ 1,207,340 $ 1,350,807

Business-type Activities

The Town transfer station revenues increased by 8% in 2020 to $73,443, while operating expenses

increased by 22% to $72,851.

The Town’s Funds

As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the Balance Sheet on Exhibit

C) reported a combined fimd balance of $230,304, which is more than last year’s total fund balance of

$223,717. Included in this year’s total increase in fund balance of $6,587 is a decrease of $32,805 in

the General Fund, an increase of $8,549 in the Reappraisal Fund, an increase of $27,003 in the

Equipment Fund, and an increase of $3,840 in the Library Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Town’s General Fund’s activity compared to budget is reported on Exhibit G and Schedule 1. The
Town’s General Fund fimd balance decreased by $32,805 which was $10,650 worse than budget.

Some of the larger variances were as follows:

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues:

Property taxes, net ‘5 1,250,243 $ 1,278,642 $ 28,399
Intergovernmental 103,200 155,816 52,616

Expenditures:

Highways and streets 540,034 852,652 (312,618)
Capital outlays 0 63 ,514 (63 ,514)

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Loan proceeds 0 250,000 250,000

Property taxes were over budget due to a decrease in deferred property taxes. Unbudgeted grants

account for the variance of intergovernmental revenue. The highways and streets were over budget

due to the flood mitigation and repair costs that were not budgeted. Capital outlays for new culverts

were not budgeted. Unbudgeted loan proceeds needed for repair ofroads due to flooding account for

the variance of loan proceeds.
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Table 3 
Governmental Activities 

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services 
2020 2019 2020 2019 

General government and admin. $ 793,972 $ 554,802 $ 340,236 $ 327,444 
Public safety 344,322 328,933 339,888 324,920 
Highways and streets 590,912 698,936 430,293 596,696 
Culture and recreation 81,120 86,305 73,139 81,255 
All others 26,374 22,133 23,784 20,492 

Totals $1,836,700 $1,691,109 $ 1,207,340 $ 1,350,807 

Business-type Activities 

The Town transfer station revenues increased by 8% in 2020 to $73,443, while operating expenses 
increased by 22% to $72,851. 

The Town’s Funds 

As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the Balance Sheet on Exhibit 
C) reported a combined fund balance of $230504, which is more than last year’s total fund balance of 
$223,717. Included in this year’s total increase in fimd balance of $6,587 is a decrease of $32,805 in 
the General Fund, an increase of $8,549 in the Reappraisal Fund, an increase of $27,003 in the 
Equipment Fund, and an increase of $3,840 in the Library Fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The Town’s General Fund’s activity compared to budget is reported on Exhibit G and Schedule 1. The 
Town’s General Fund fimd balance decreased by $32,805 which was $10,650 worse than budget. 
Some of the larger variances were as follows: 

Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues: 

Property taxes, net $ 1,250,243 $ 1,278,642 $ 28,399 
Intergovernmental 103,200 155,816 52,616 

Expenditures: 
Highways and streets 540,034 852,652 (3 12,61 8) 
Capital outlays 0 63,514 (63,514) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Loan proceeds 0 250,000 250,000 

Property taxes were over budget due to a decrease in deferred property taxes. Unbudgeted grants 
account for the variance of intergovernmental revenue. The highways and streets were over budget 
due to the flood mitigation and repair costs that were not budgeted. Capital outlays for new culverts 
were not budgeted. Unbudgeted loan proceeds needed for repair of roads due to flooding account for 
the variance of loan proceeds. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

(Continued)

At June 30, 2020, the Town had $1,666,582 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land,

buildings and improvements, vehicles, equipment and infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation.

(See Table 4 below) This amount represents a net decrease (including additions and deductions) of

$ 123,801.

Table 4

Capital Assets at Year—End

(Net of Accumulated Depreciation)

Governmental Business—type

Activities Activities Totals

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
Land $ 12,861 $ 12,861 $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $ 20,861 1 20,861

Buildings and improv. 380,490 391,398 0 0 380,490 391,398
Vehicles 521,279 619,954 0 0 521,279 619,954

Machinery and equip. 75,738 92,149 0 0 75,738 92,149
Infrastructure 668,214 666,021 0 0 668,214 666,021

Totals $ 1,658,582 $ 1,782,383 $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $1,666,582 $1,790,383

This year’s major additions for governmental activities were culverts.

The Town’s fiscal year 2021 capital budget calls for it to allocate $76,500 for equipment reserve.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2020, the Town had $612,674 in notes outstanding versus $469,441 on June 30, 2019 — an

increase of $143,233 — as shown in Table 5.

Table 5

Outstanding Debt at Year—End

Balance - June 30, 2019

Loan proceeds

Principal payments

Balance — June 30, 2020

$ 469,441

250,000

£106,767)

$ 612,674
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

At June 30, 2020, the Town had $1,666,582 invested in a broad rahge of capital assets, including land, 
buildings and improvements, vehicles, equipment and infrastructure, net of accumulated depreciation. 
(See Table 4 below) This amount represents a net decrease (including additions and deductions) of 
$ 123 ,801 . 

Table 4 
Capital Assets at Year-End 

(Net of Accumulated Depreciation) 

Governmental ' Business-type 
Activities Activities Totals 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 
Land $ 12,861 $ 12,861 $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $ 20,861 1 20,861 
Buildings and improv. 380,490 391,398 0 0 380,490 391,398 
Vehicles 521,279 619,954 0 0 521,279 619,954 
Machinery and equip. 75,738 92,149 0 0 75,738 92,149 
Infrastructure 668,214 666,021 0 0 668,214 666,021 

Totals $ 1,658,582 $ 1,782,383 $ 8,000 $ 8,000 $1,666,582 $1,790,383 

This year’s major additions for governmental activities were culverts. 

The Town’s fiscal year 2021 capital budget calls for it to allocate $76,500 for equipment reserve. 

Debt Administration 

At June 30, 2020; the Town had $612,674 in notes outstanding versus $469,441 on June 30, 2019 — an 
increase of $143,233 — as shown in Table 5. 

Table 5 
Outstanding Debt at Year-End 

Balance - June 30, 2019 $ 469,441 

Loan proceeds 250,000 
Principal payments 1 106,767! 
Balance — June 30, 2020 $ 612,674 
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

When adopting the budget for the 2020-21 year, the Selectboard based their figures on previous year

'spending and departmental budget requests. The tax rate is set based on the voter approved budget

amount for taxes divided by the Grand List.

Contacting the Town’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and

creditors with a general overview of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountability for

the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,

contact the Town Office at Town of Wolcott, PO Box 100, Wolcott, Vermont.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

When adopting the budget for the 2020-21 year, the Selectboard based their figures on previous year 
'spending and departmental budget requests. The tax rate is set based on the voter approved budget 
amount for taxes divided by the Grand List. 

Contacting the Town’s Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and 
creditors with a general overview of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountability for 
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Town Office at Town of Wolcott, PO Box 100, Wolcott, Vermont. 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT A
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2020

Primary Government

Governmental Business—type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 292,589 $ 11,650 $ 304,239

Restricted cash 71,73 7 0 71,737

Delinquent taxes, penalties

and interest receivable 13 5,487 0 13 5,487

Grant receivable 396,3 52 0 396,352

Due from others 13,278 0 13,278

Inventory 20,432 0 20,432

Note receivable - Cemetery Association 2,000 0 2,000

Note receivable — RLF 23,595 0 23,595

Capital assets:

Land 12,861 8,000 20,861

Other capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation l ,645 ,721 0 1,645,721

Total assets 2,614,052 19,650 2,633,702

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related 34,423 0 34,423

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 2,648,475 19,650 2,668,125

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 232,3 63 4,723 237,086

Accrued wages O 241 241

Unearned grants 6,471 0 6,47 1

Accrued interest 3,939 0 3,939

Note payable due within one year 146,151 0 146,151

Net pension liability 98,877 0 98,877

Note payable due after one year 466,523 0 466,523

Total liabilities 954,324 4,964 959,288

DEFERRED lNFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related 5,802 0 5,802

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 960,126 4,964 965,090

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 1,045,908 8,000 1,053,908

Restricted 75 ,378 0 75,378

Unrestricted 567,063 6,686 573,749

Total net position $ 1,688,349 $ 14,686 $ 1,703,035

See Notes to Financial Statements. -10-

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT A 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2020 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business~type 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 292,5 89 $ 11,650 $ 304,239 
Restricted cash 71,737 0 71,737 
Delinquent taxes, penalties 

and interest receivable 135,487 0 135,487 
Grant receivable 396,352 0 396,352 
Due from others 13,278 0 13,278 
Inventory 20,432 0 20,432 
Note receivable - Cemetery Association 2,000 0 2,000 
Note receivable - RLF 23,595 0 23,595 
Capital assets: 

Land 12,861 8,000 20,861 
Other capital assets, net of 

accumulated depreciation 1,645,721 0 1,645,721 

Total assets 2,614,052 19,650 2,633,702 

DEFERRED OUTF LOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 34,423 0 34,423 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 2,648,475 19,650 2,668,125 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 232,3 63 4,723 237,086 
Accrued wages 0 241 241 
Uneamed grants 6,471 0 6,47 l 
Accrued interest 3,939 0 3,939 
Note payable due within one year 146,151 0 146,151 
Net pension liability 98,877 0 98,877 
Note payable due after one year 466,523 0 466,523 

Total liabilities 954,324 4,964 959,288 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Pension related 5,802 0 5,802 

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 960,126 4,964 965,090 

NET POSITION 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 1,045,908 8,000 1,053,908 
Restricted 75 ,378 0 75,378 
Unrestricted 567,063 6,686 573,749 

Total net position $ 1,688,349 $ 14,686 $ 1,703,035 

See Notes to Financial Statements. -10-  



Functions/Programs

Governmental Activities:

General government and admin.

Public safety

Highways and streets

Culture and recreation

Interest on debt

Miscellaneous

Total governmental activities

Business—type activities

Transfer station

Total business-type activities

Total government

See Notes to Financial Statements.

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT B
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net (Expense) Revenue

Operating Capital and Change in Net Position

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Totals

$ 414,349 $ 63,092 $ 11,021 0 $ (340,236) $ 0 $ (340,236)

344,322 4,434 0 0 (339,888) 0 (339,888)

970,535 455 500,781 39,006 (430,293) 0 (430,293)

81,120 0 7,981 0 (73,139) 0 (73,139)

12,721 0 0 0 (12,721) 0 (12,721)

13,653 1,530 1,060 0 (1 1,063) 0 (11,063)

1,836,700 69,511 520,843 39,006 (1,207,340) 0 (1,207,340)

72,851 73,443 0 0 0 592 592

72,851 73,443 0 0 0 592 592

$ 1,909,551 $ 142,954 $ 520,843 39,006 (1,207,340) 592 (1,206,748)

General Revenues:

Property taxes, penalties and interest 1,281,498 0 1,281,498

Eamings on investments 13,967 19 13,986

Total general revenues and special item 1,295,465 19 1,295,484

Change in net position 88,125 611 88,736

Net position — July 1, 2019 1,600,224 14,075 1,614,299

Net position - June 30, 2020 $ 1,688,349 $ 14,686 $ 1,703,035

-11-

Functions/Programs 

Governmental Activities: 
General government and admin. 
Public safety 
Highways and streets 
Culture and recreation 
Interest on debt 
Miscellaneous 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities 
Transfer station 

Total business-type activities 

Total government 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

Expenses 

$ 414,349 
344,322 
970,535 

81,120 
12,721 
13,653 

1,836,700 

72,851 
72,851 

$ 1,909,551 

General Revenues: 
Property taxes, penalties and interest 
Earnings on investments 

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT 

Total general revenues and special item 

Change in net position 

Net position - July 1, 2019 

Net position - June 30, 2020 
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Operating Capital 
Charges for Grants and Grants and 

Services Contributions Contributions 

S 63,092 $ 11,021 $ 0 
4,434 0 O 

455 500,781 39,006 
0 7,981 0 
0 0 0 

1,530 1,060 0 
69,51 1 520,843 39,006 

73,443 0 0 
73,443 0 0 

$ 142,954 $ 520,843 $ 39,006 

$ 

35 

Net (Expense) Revenue 
and Change in Net Position 

Business-type 
Activities 

Governmental 
Activities 

(340,236) 
(339,888) 
(430,293) 
(73,139) 
(12,121) 
(1 1,063) 

(1,207,340) 

0 
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1,281,498 
13,967 

1 ,295,465 

88, 125 

1 ,600,224 

1,688,349 $ 

0
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0
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Totals 

(340,236) 
(339,888) 
(430,293) 
(73,139) 
(12,721) 
(11,063) 

£1,207,340) 

592 
592 

(1,206,748) 

1,281,498 
13,986 

1,295,484 

88,736 

1,614,299 

1,703,035 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT C
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020

Major Funds Nonmajor
General Reappraisal Equipment

Fund Fund Fund Library Totals

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 198,825 $ 0 $ 62,735 $ 31,029 $ 292,589
Restn'cted cash 4,294 67,443 0 0 71,737

Taxes, interest and

penalty receivable 13 5,487 0 0 0 135,487

Due from others 13,278 0 0 0 13,278

Grants receivable 396,352 0 0 0 396,352

Due from other funds 1,982 O 0 0 1,982

Inventory 20,432 0 0 0 - 20,432

Note receivable - Cemetery Assoc. 2,000 0 O 0 2,000

Note receivable - RLF 23,595 0 O 0 23,595

Total assets $ 796,245 $ 67,443 $ 62,735 $ 31,029 $ 957,452

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 218,483 $ 0 $ 0 $ 2,060 $ 220,543

Construction payable 1 1,820 0 0 0 11,820

Due to other fimds 0 1,982 0 0 1,982

Uneamed grants 0 O 0 6,47 1 6,471

Total liabilities 230,303 1,982 0 8,531 240,816

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue — property taxes 66,385 0 0 0 66,385

Unavailable revenue loans 23,595 0 0 0 23,595

Unavailable revenue — grants 396,352 0 0 0 396,352

Total deferred inflows of resources 486,332 0 0 0 486,332

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 20,432 0 0 0 20,432

Restficted 9,917 65,461 0 0 75,378

Committed 49,261 0 62,735 0 1 11,996

Assigned 0 0 0 22,498 22,498

Total fund balances 79,610 65 ,461 62,735 22,498 230,304

Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances $ 796,245 $ 67,443 $ 62,735 S 31,029 $ 957,452

See Notes to Financial Statements. 12 —

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT 
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Maj or Funds 
General Reappraisal 

Fund Fund 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 198,825 $ 0 
Restricted cash 4,294 67,443 
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penalty receivable 135,487 0 
Due from others 13,278 0 
Grants receivable 396,352 0 
Due fiom other funds 1,982 0 
Inventory 20,432 0 
Note receivable - Cemetery Assoc. 2,000 0 
Note receivable - RLF 23,595 0 

Total assets $ 796,245 $ 67,443 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Construction payable 
Due to other funds 
Uneamed grants 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 
Unavailable revenue - loans 
Unavailable revenue - grants 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

FUND BALANCES 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources and fimd balances 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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Nonmajor 

Library Totals 
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0 13,278 
0 396,352 
0 1,982 
0 - 20,432 
0 2,000 
0 23,595 

$ 31,029 $ 957,452 

$ 2,060 $ 220,543 
0 11,820 
0 1,982 

6,471 6,471 

8,531 240,816 

0 66,385 
0 23,595 
0 396,352 

0 486,332 

0 20,432 
0 75,378 
0 1 1 1,996 

22,498 22,498 
22,498 230,304 

$ 31,029 $ 957,452 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT D
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

TOTAL FUND BALANCES — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 230,304

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the

statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not reported as

assets in governmental funds. The cost of the assets is

$3,050,763 and the accumulated depreciation is $1,392,181. 1,658,582

Unavailable revenues are recognized on an accrual basis in

the statement of net position, not the modified accrual basis.

Property taxes 66,385

Grants 396,352

Loans 23,595 486,332

Some liabilities, including net pension obligations, are not due and

payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in

the governmental funds:

Net pension liability (98,877)

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are

applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in

the governmental funds:

Deferred outflows 34,423

Deferred inflows (5,802) 28,621

Long—term liabilities, including notes payable, are not due

and payable in the current period and therefore are not

reported as liabilities in the funds. Long—term liabilities at

year end consist of:

Notes payable 612,674

Accrued interest 3,939 (616,613)

TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 1,688,349

See Notes to Financial Statements. - 13 -

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2020 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
statement of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported as 
assets in governmental funds. The cost of the assets is 
$3,050,763 and the accumulated depreciation is $1,392,181. 

Unavailable revenues are recognized on an accrual basis in 
the statement of net position, not the modified accrual basis. 

Property taxes 66,385 
Grants 396,352 
Loans 23,595 

Some liabilities, including net pension obligations, are not due and 
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in 
the governmental funds: ' 

Net pension liability I 

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are 
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in 
the governmental funds: 

Deferred outflows 34,423 
Deferred inflows (5,802) 

Long-term liabilities, including notes payable, are not due 
and payable in the current period and therefore are not 
reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term liabilities at 
year end consist of: 

Notes payable 612,674 
Accrued interest 3,939 

TOTAL NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

See Notes to Financial Statements. - 13 — 

EXHIBIT D 

$ 230,304 

1,658,582 

486,332 

(98,877) 

28,621 

(616,613) 

W 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT E
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Major Funds Nonmajor
General Reappraisal Equipment

Fund Fund Fund Library Totals

REVENUES
Property taxes, net $ 1,278,642 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,278,642

Penalty and interest 27,052 0 0 0 27,052

Charges for services 2,092 0 0 0 2,092

Intergovernmental 155,816 8,45 7 0 0 164,273

Licenses and permits 8,829 0 O 0 8,829

Investment income 13 ,807 92 9 59 13 ,967

Fines and forfeitures 4,434 O 0 0 4,434

Cemetery income 1,060 0 0 0 1,060

Rental income 6,790 0 0 0 6,790

Town Hall use 3,420 0 O 0 3,420

Town Clerk fees 23,320 0 0 0 23,320

Miscellaneous 14,049 0 0 7,981 22,030

Total revenues 1,539,311 8,549 9 8,040 1,555,909

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government

and administration 325,665 0 O 0 325,665

Public safety 344,322 0 0 0 344,322

Cemetery 13,653 0 0 0 13,653

Highway and streets 852,652 0 6 0 852,658

Culture and recreation 68,195 0 0 12,925 81,120

Debt service:

Principal 60,009 0 46,758 0 106,767

Interest 10,3 81 0 1,242
'

0 1 1,623

Capital outlay 63,514 0 0 0 63,514

Total expenditures 1,73 8,391 0 48,006 12,925 1,799,322

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (199,080) 8,549 (47,997) (4,885) (243,413)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in O 0 75,000 8,725 83,725

Transfers out (83,725) 0 0 0 (83,725)

Loan proceeds 250,000 0 0 0 250,000

Total other financing sources (uses) 166,275 0 75,000 8,725 250,000

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (32,805) 8,549 27,003 3,840 6,587

FUND BALANCES JULY l, 2019 112,415 56,912 35,732 18,658 223,717

FUND BALANCES — JUNE 30, 2020 $ 79,610 $ 65,461 $ 62,735 $ 22,498 $ 230,304

See Notes to Financial Statements. - l4 -

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT E 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 

AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Major Funds Nonmajor 
General Reappraisal Equipment 
Fund Fund Fund Library Totals 

REVENUES 
Property taxes, net $ 1,278,642 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 1,278,642 
Penalty and interest 27,052 0 0 0 27,052 
Charges for services 2,092 0 O 0 2,092 
Intergovernmental 155,816 8,457 0 0 164,273 
Licenses and permits 8,829 0 0 0 8,829 
Investment income 13,807 92 9 59 13,967 
Fines and forfeitures 4,434 0 0 0 4,434 
Cemetery income 1,060 0 0 0 1,060 
Rental income 6,790 0 0 0 6,790 
Town Hall use 3,420 0 0 0 3,420 
Town Clerk fees 23,320 0 0 0 23,320 
Miscellaneous , 14,049 0 0 7,981 22,030 

- Total revenues 1,539,311 8,549 9 8,040 1,555,909 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
and administration 325,665 0 0 0 325,665 

Public safety 344,322 0 0 0 344,322 
Cemetery 13,653 0 0 0 13,653 
Highway and streets 852,652 0 6 0 852,658 
Culture and recreation 68,195 0 0 12,925 81,120 

Debt service: 
Principal 60,009 0 46,758 0 106,767 
Interest 10,381 0 1,242 ‘ 0 1 1,623 

Capital outlay 63,5 14 0 0 0 63,5 14 
Total expenditures 1,738,391 0 48,006 12,925 1,799,322 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES (199,080) 8,549 (47,997) (4,885) (243,413) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 0 0 75,000 8,725 83,725 
Transfers out ’ (83,725) 0 0 0 (83,725) 
Loan proceeds 250,000 0 0 0 250,000 

Total other financing sources (uses) 166,275 0 75,000 8,725 250,000 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (32,805) 8,549 27,003 3,840 6,587 

FUND BALANCES - JULY 1, 2019 112,415 56,912 35,732 18,658 223,717 

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30, 2020 $ 79,610 $ 65,461 $ 62,735 $ 22,498 $ 230,304 

See Notes to Financial Statements. - l4  - 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT F
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT

OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 6,587

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is

allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the net amount of capital outlays of $635 14, net of disposals and

trade—ins of $—0-, and depreciation expense of $187,3 15 in the period. (123,801)

Unavailable revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in the statement of

net position, not the modified accrual basis.

Unavailable property taxes decreased (24,196)

Unavailable grants V 396,352

Unavailable loans decreased (3,240) 368,916

Repayment of notes principal is an expenditure in the governmental

funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the

statement of net position. 106,767

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However
in the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits earned, net of

employee contributions, is reported as pension expense:

Town pension contributions 10,326

Cost of benefits earned, net of employee contributions (29,572) (19,246)

Loan proceeds are revenue in the governmental funds, but the loan

increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. (250,000)

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs

from the amount reported in the governmental funds because

interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it

is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources.

In the statement of activities, however, interest expense is

recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due.

The interest reported in the statement of activities is increased

because accrued interest on bonds and notes payable increased

by $1,098. (1,098)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 88,125

See Notes to Financial Statements. — 15 —

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT F 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT 

OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES — GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 6,587 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of 
activities are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is 
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. 
This is the net amount of capital outlays of $63,5 14, net of disposals and 
trade-ins of $—O-, and depreciation expense of $187,315 in the period. (123,801) 

Unavailable revenue is recognized on an accrual basis in the statement of 
net position, not the modified accrual basis. ' 

Unavailable property taxes decreased (24,196) 
Unavailable grants 7 396,352 
Unavailable loans decreased (3,240) 368,916 

Repayment of notes principal is an expenditure in the governmental 
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the 
statement of net position. 106,767 

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures. However 
in the statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits earned, net of 
employee contributions, is reported as pension expense: 

Town pension contributions 10,326 
Cost of benefits earned, net of employee contributions (29,572) (19,246) 

Loan proceeds are revenue in the governmental funds, but the loan 
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. (250,000) 

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs 
from the amount reported in the governmental funds because 
interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it 
is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources. 
In the statement of activities, however, interest expense is 
recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. 
The interest reported in the statement of activities is increased 
because accrued interest on bonds and notes payable increased 
by $1,098. (1,098) 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 88,125 

See Notes to Financial Statements. — 15 — 



REVENUES
Property taxes, net

Penalty and interest

Charges for services

Intergovernmental

Licenses and permits

Investment income
Fines and forfeitures

Rental income

Cemetery income
Town Hall use

Town Clerk fees

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government

and administration

Public safety

Cemetery

Highway and streets

Culture and recreation

Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Capital outlays

Total expenditures

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Loan proceeds

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE — JULY 1, 2019

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2020

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT G
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE

IN FUND BALANCE COMPARED TO BUDGET
GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Original Variance

and Final Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

$ 1,250,243 $ 1,278,642 $ 28,399

20,000 27,052 7,052

125 2,092 1,967

103,200 155,816 52,616

5,600 8,829 3,229

5,000 13,807 8,807

4,000 4,434 434
7,030 6,790 (240)

0 1,060 1,060

4,800 3,420 (1,380)

14,000 23,320 9,320

1,000 14,049 13,049

1,414,998 1,539,311 124,313

317,863 325,665 (7,802)

344,322 344,322 0

11,350 13,653 (2,303)

540,034 852,652 (312,618)

70,234 68,195 2,039

58,923 60,009 (1,086)

10,702 10,381 321

0 63,514 (63,514)

1,353,428 1,738,391 (384,963)

61,570 (199,080) (260,650)

0 250,000 250,000

(83,725) (83,725) 0

(83,725) 166,275 250,000

$ (22,155) (32,805) $ (10,650)

1 12,415

$ 79,610

_ 16 _See Notes to Financial Statements.

REVENUES 
Property taxes, net 
Penalty and interest 
Charges for services 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and permits 
Investment income 
Fines and forfeitures 
Rental income 
Cemetery income 
Town Hall use 
Town Clerk fees 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
and administration 

Public safety 
Cemetery 
Highway and streets 
Culture and recreation 

Debt service: 
Principal 
Interest 

Capital outlays 
Total expenditures 

EXCESS REVENUES (EXPENDITURES) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Loan proceeds 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE — JULY 1, 2019 

FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30, 2020 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE 

IN FUND BALANCE COMPARED TO BUDGET 
GENERAL FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020, 

Original 
and Final 
Budget 

$ 1,250,243 
20,000 

125 
103,200 

5,600 
5,000 
4,000 
7,030 

0 
4,800 

14,000 
1,000 

1,414,998 

317,863 
344,322 

1 1,350 
540,034 
70,234 

53,923 
10,702 

0 
1,353,428 

61,570 

0 
(83,725) 
(83,725) 

$ (22,155) 

-16— 

Actual 

$ 1,278,642 
27,052 
2,092 

155,816 
8,829 

13,807 
4,434 
6,790 
1,060 
3,420 

23,320 
14,049 

1,539,311 

325,665 
344,322 

13,653 
852,652 
68,195 

60,009 
10,381 
63,514 

1,738,391 

(199,080) 

250,000 
(83,725) 
166,275 

EXHIBIT G 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

$ 28,399 
7,052 
1,967 

52,616 
3,229 
8,807 

434 
(240) 

1,060 
(1,380) 
9,320 

13,049 
124,313 

(7,802) 
0 

(2,303) 
(312,618) 

2,039 

(1,086) 
321 

(63,514) 
(384,963) 

(260,650) 

250,000 
0 

250,000 

(32,805) $ (10,650) 

112,415 

$ 79,610 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT H
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
JUNE 30, 2020

Business Type Activities

ASSETS

Current assets:
.

Cash $ 1 1,650

Total current assets 1 1,650

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Land 8,000

Total assets 19,650

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 4,723

Accrued wages and related taxes 241

Total liabilities 4,964

NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,000

Unrestricted 6,686
Total net position $ 14,686

See Notes to Financial Statements. -17-

Enterprise Fund
Transfer Station

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT H 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2020 

Business T3129 Activities 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 
Cash 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets: 

Land 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Accrued wages and related taxes 

Total liabilities 

NET POSITION 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

See Notes to Financial Statements. - 1 7 -  

Enteflgrise Fund 
Transfer Station 

s—MSO 
11,650 

8,000 
19,650 

4,723 
241 

4,964 

8,000 
6,686 

1+14,686 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT I

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Business T 6 Activities

Entegprlse Funa
Transfer Station

OPERATING REVENUES: v

Charges for services $ 73,443

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Garbage disposal and recycling 35,071

Containers 25,928

Wages and benefits 6,627

Heating 832
Repairs 168

Supplies 1,123

Miscellaneous 3,102

Total operating expenses 72,851

NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 592

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 19

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 611

NET POSITION - JULY 1, 2019
' —14,07§_

NET POSITION — JUNE 30, 2020 $ 14,686

See Notes to Financial Statements. - 18 -

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT I 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Business Type Activities 
_ILeee_Fun_ 
Transfer Station 

OPERATING REVENUES: . 
Charges for services $ 73,443 

OPERATING EXPENSES: 
Garbage disposal and recycling 35,071 
Containers 25,928 
Wages and benefits 6,627 
Heating 832 
Repairs - 168 
Supplies 1,123 
Miscellaneous 3,102 

Total operating expenses 72,851 

NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 592 

NONOI’ERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 19 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 61 1 

NET POSITION - JULY 1, 2019 ' _L07§_ 

NET POSITION — JUNE 30, 2020 $ 14,686 

See Notes to Financial Statements. - 18 - 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT J

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Business Type Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM (TO) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from landfill receipts $ 73,443

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (66,058)

Cash payments to employees (6,621)

Net cash from operating activities 764

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest on cash and investments 19

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 783

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1, 2019 10,867

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — JUNE 30, 2020 $ 11,650

RECONCILIATION OFINCOME FROM OPEMTIONS
TO NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income from operations 35 592

Adjustments to reconcile income from operations

to net cash flow from operating activities

Change in assets and liabilities:

Increase in accounts payable 166

Increase in accrued wages 6

Net cash from operating activities $ 764

See Notes to Financial Statements. — 19 -

Enterprise Fund

Transfer Station

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT EXHIBIT J 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Business Type Activities 
Enterprise Fund 
Transfer Station 

CASH FLOWS FROM (TO) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash received from landfill receipts $ 73,443 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (66,058) 
Cash payments to employees (6,621) 

Net cash from operating activities 764 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest on cash and investments 19 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND 
CASH EQUIVALENTS ‘ 783 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — JULY 1, 2019 10,867 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — JUNE 30, 2020 $ 11,650 

RECONCILIATION OF 'IN COME FROM OPERATIONS 
T0 NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Income from operations $ 592 
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations 

to net cash flow from operating activities 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Increase in accounts payable 166 
Increase in accrued wages 6 

Net cash from operating activities $ 764 

See Notes to Financial Statements. - 19 - 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020

The Town operates under a Selectboard form of government and provides the following services as

authorized by its charter: highway and streets, public improvements, planning and zoning, library and
general administrative services.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is primarily

responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements

(including Statements and Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in

GAAP and used by the Town are discussed below.

Reporting Entity

The Town’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all Town operations. The criteria for

including organizations as component units within the Town’s reporting entity are set forth in GASB
14 as amended by GASB 39, and Section 2100 of GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards.

Based on the criteria, the Town has no component units.

Basic Financial Statements — G0vemment Wide Statements

The Town’s basic financial statements include both government—wide (reporting the Town as a

whole) and fund financial statements (focusing on the Town’s major funds). The government—wide

financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The
Town’s public safety, highways and streets, culture and recreation, and general administrative

services are classified as governmental activities. The Town’s transfer station services are classified

as business—type activities.

The government-Wide Statement ofNet Position presents all of the Town’s activities on a full

accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long—term assets and receivables as well as

long-term debt and obligations. The Town’s net position is reported in three parts — invested in

capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The Town
first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities for which both restricted and

unrestricted resources are available.

The government—wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the

Town’s governmental fimctions and business-type activities. The fimctions are also supported by
general government revenue (property taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and

charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related

program revenue, consisting of operating grants and contributions. Program revenue must be directly

associated with the governmental fimction (public safety, highways and streets, etc.) or a business—

type activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or

capital) grants.

The net costs (by governmental fimction or business—type activity) are normally covered by general

revenues (property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).

-20-

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2020 

The Town operates under a Selectboard form of government and provides the following services as 
authorized by its charter: highway and streets, public improvements, planning and zoning, library and 
general administrative services. 

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is primarily 
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements 
(including Statements and Interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in 
GAAP and used by the Town are discussed below. 

Reporting Entity 

The Town’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all Town operations. The criteria for 
including organizations as component units within the Town’s reporting entity are set forth in GASB 
14 as amended by GASB 39, and Section 2100 of GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Standards. 

Based on the criteria, the Town has no component units. 

Basic Financial Statements — G0vemment~ Wide Statements 

The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Town as a 
whole) and fund financial statements (focusing on the Town’s major funds). The government—wide 
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The 
Town’s public safety, highways and streets, culture and recreation, and general administrative 
services are classified as governmental activities. The Town’s transfer station services are classified 
as business—type activities. 

The government—wide Statement of Net Position presents all of the Town’s activities on a full 
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long—term assets and receivables as well as 
long—term debt and obligations. The Town’s net position is reported in three parts — invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The Town 
first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities for which both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available. 

The govemment—wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the 
Town’s governmental functions and business-type activities. The functions are also supported by 
general government revenue (property taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and 
charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related 
program revenue, consisting of operating grants and contributions. Program revenue must be directly 
associated with the governmental fimction (public safety, highways and streets, etc.) or a business— 
type activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or 
capital) grants. 

The net costs (by governmental fimction or business—type activity) are normally covered by general 
revenues (property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.). 
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(Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity and the change in

the Town’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.

Basic Financial Statements — Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Town are reported in individual funds in the fund financial

statements. Each fimd is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that

comprises its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures. The various fimds are

reported by major fund within the financial statements. The Town’s major fimds are the General

Fund, Reappraisal Fund and the Equipment Fund. The Library is a non-major fimd.

The following fimd categories are used by the Town:

Governmental Fund

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fimd statements) is upon determination of

financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial

resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of

the Town:

General Fund is the main operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all financial

resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Equipment Fund is a Capital Projects Fund used to account for the purchase ofnew town
highway equipment.

Reappraisal Fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for the reappraisal ofproperties

located in the Town.

Library Fand is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for the activities of the Glee Merritt

Kelley Community Library.

Proprietary Fund

The focus of proprietary funds’ measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in

net position, and cash flows. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing

services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fimd’s principal

ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as

nonoperating revenues and expenses. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are

those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary

fund of the Town:

Transfer station is used to account for the operations of the transfer station.

Basis ofAccounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in

the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements

made regardless of the measurement focus applied.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

This government—wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity and the change in 
the Town’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities. 

Basic Financial Statements —— Fund Financial Statements 

The financial transactions of the Town are reported in individual funds in the fund financial 
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprises its assets, liabilities, fimd equity, revenues and expenditures. The various funds are 
reported by major fund within the financial statements. The Town’s major fimds are the General 
Fund, Reappraisal Fund and the Equipment Fund. The Library is a non-major fimd. 

I The following fund categories are used by the Town: 

Governmental Fund 

The focus of the governmental fimds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of 
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial 
resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of 
the Town: 

General Fund is the main operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Equipment Fund is a Capital Projects Fund used to account for the purchase of new town 
highway equipment. 

Reappraisal Fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for the reappraisal of properties 
located in the Town. 

Library Fund is a Special Revenue Fund used to account for the activities of the Glee Merritt 
Kelley Community Library. 

Proprietary Fund 

The focus of proprietary funds’ measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in 
net position, and cash flows. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing 
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal 
ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are 
those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary 
fund of the Town: 

Transfer station is used to account for the operations of the transfer station. 

Basis of Accounting 

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in 
the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements 
made regardless of the measurement focus applied. 
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(Continued)

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Accrual

Both governmental and business-type activities in the govemment—wide financial statements and the

proprietary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are

recognized when transactions occur and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Modified Accrual

The governmental fimds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of

accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recorded when susceptible to

accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the cunent period

or within 60 days after year end for property taxes and six months for other revenue. Expenditures

are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is

incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-

term debt, compensated absences, claims and judgments, and certain prepaids, which are recognized

when due/paid.

Budgetary Accounting

The Town approves a budget for the General Fund at an annual Town Meeting and the Selectboard

based on the budget and Grand List determines the tax rate. Formal budgetary accounting is

employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund. The budget for the

General Fund is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America.

The Town is not legally required to adopt a budget for fimds other than the General Fund. Therefore,

a budgetary comparison is not presented for those funds.

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the statement of net position.

Net position is divided into three components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — consist of the historical cost of capital assets

less accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to

finance those assets plus deferred outflows of resources less deferred inflows of resources

related to those assets.

Restricted net position — consist of assets that are restricted by the Town’s creditors, enabling

legislation, by grantors, and by other contributors.

Unrestricted net position — all other net position is reported in this category.

The Town first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

Inventory

Inventory in the General Fund consists of expendable supplies used for the highway department and
are carried at cost.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Ace—mall 

Both governmental and business—type activities in the government-wide financial statements and the 
proprietary fimd financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized when transactions occur and expenses are recognized when incurred. 

Modified Accrual 

The governmental fimds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recorded when susceptible to 
accrual; i.e., both measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period 
or within 60 days after year end for property taxes and six months for other revenue. Expenditures 
are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is 
incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long- 
term debt, compensated absences, claims and judgments, and certain prepaids, which are recognized 
when due/paid. 

Budgetary Accounting 

The Towh approves a budget for the General Fund at an annual Town Meeting and the Selectboard 
based on the budget and Grand List determines the tax rate. Formal budgetary accounting is 
employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund. The budget for the 
General Fund is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

The Town is not legally required to adopt a budget for fimds other than the General Fund. Therefore, 
a budgetary comparison is not presented for those fimds. 

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities in the statement of net position. 
Net position is divided into three components: 

Invested in cagital assets, net of related debt — consist of the historical cost of capital assets 
less accumulated depreciation and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to 
finance those assets plus deferred outflows of resources less deferred inflows of resources 
related to those assets. 

Restricted net position — consist of assets that are restricted by the Town’s creditors, enabling 
legislation, by grantors, and by other contributors. 

Unrestricted net position — all other net position is reported in this category. 

The Town first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities. 

Inventory 

Inventory in the General Fund consists of expendable supplies used for the highway department and 
are carried at cost. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Unavailable Revenue

Unavailable revenue consists of the following:

General Fund
— Delinquent taxes not collected within sixty (60) days after year end and other

receivables not collected within six months afier year end.

— Long-term loan receivables.

Pensions

GASB Statement No. 68 establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred

outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses/expenditures.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net

position of the Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (VMERS) and additions

to/deductions from VMERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by VMERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Investments are reported at fair value.

Deferred Outflows ofResources

The Town reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outflows of
resources in a separate section of its government-wide and proprietary funds statements of net

position. Deferred outflows of resources reported in this year’s financial statements are deferred

outflow of resources for differences between expected and actual experience, changes in

assumptions, differences between projected and actual investment earnings, changes in proportion

and differences between Town contributions and proportionate share of contributions, and
contributions to the Town’s defined benefit pension plans between the measurement date of the net

pension liabilities from those plans and the end of the Town’s fiscal year. No deferred outflows of
resources affect the governmental funds financial statements in the current year.

Deferred Inflows ofResources

The Town’s statements of net position and its governmental fund balance sheet report a separate

section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element reflects an
increase in net position that applies to a future period(s).

Deferred inflows of resources are reported in the Town’s statement of net position for changes in

proportion and differences between Town contributions and proportionate share of contributions.

This deferred inflow of resources is attributed to pension expense over a total of 5 years, including

the current year.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Unavailable Revenue 

Unavailable revenue consists of the following: 

General Fund 
— Delinquent taxes not collected within sixty (60) days after year end and other 

receivables not collected within six months after year end. 

— Long-term loan receivables. 
Pensions 

GASB Statement No. 68 establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred 
outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expenses/expenditures. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the Vermont Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (V MERS) and additions 
to/deductions fiom VMERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by VMERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

The Town reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outflows of 
resources in a separate section of its government—wide and proprietary fimds statements of net 
position. Deferred outflows of resources reported in this year’s financial statements are deferred 
outflow of resources for differences between expected and actual experience, changes in 
assumptions, differences between projected and actual investment earnings, changes in proportion 
and differences between Town contributions and proportionate share of contributions, and 
contributions to the Town’s defined benefit pension plans between the measurement date of the net 
pension liabilities from those plans and the end of the Town’s fiscal year. No deferred outflows of 
resources affect the governmental fimds financial statements in the current year. 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

The Town’s statements of net position and its governmental fund balance sheet report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element reflects an 
increase in net position that applies to a future period(s). 

Deferred inflows of resources are reported in the Town’s statement of net position for changes in 
proportion and differences between Town contributions and proportionate share of contributions. 
This deferred inflow of resources is attributed to pension expense over a total of 5 years, including 
the current year. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In its governmental fimds, the only deferred inflow of resources is for revenues that are not

considered available. The Town has two items which occur because government fund revenues are

not recognized until available (collected not later than sixty days after the end of the Town’s fiscal

year for property taxes, and six months for all other revenue) under the modified accrual basis of
accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, unavailable property tax

revenue and unavailable loans are reported in the governmental fimds balance sheet. The Town did

not have deferred inflows of resources to report in its proprietary fund financial statements for the

current year.

Fund Equity

GASB Statement 54 “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions” provides

fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government’s

fund balance more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the

spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:

Nonspendable - Indicates the portion of fund equity that cannot be spent due to their form

(e.g. inventories and prepaids) or fimds that legally or contractually must be maintained intact.

Restricted - Indicates the portion of fund equity that is mandated for a specific purpose by
external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation (e.g. Cemetery Fund,

Reappraisal Fund, federal and state grants, bondholders, trust and trustee accounts).

Committed — Indicates the portion of filnd equity that is set aside for a specific purpose by the

Town’s legal voters. Formal action must be taken prior to the end of the fiscal year (e.g.

capital projects). The same formal action must be taken to remove or change the limitations

placed on the funds.

Assigned - Indicates the portion of fund equity that is set aside with the intent to be used for a

specific purpose by the Selectboard, or body or official that has been given the authority to

assign funds (e.g. encumbrances, subsequent budgets). Assigned funds cannot cause a deficit

in unassigned fund balance.

Unassigned - Indicates the portion of fund equity that has not been classified in the previous

four categories. All fimds in this category are considered spendable resources. This category

provides the resources necessary to meet unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls.

The Town voters establish (and modify or rescind) fund balance commitments by passage of a

resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance

commitment is filrther indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fund

(such as special incentives). Assigned fund balance is established by the Selectboard through

adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of capital

assets, construction, debt service or other purposes).

When an expenditure is incurred that qualifies for payment from either of the three unrestricted fimd
balance categories, it will be applied in the following order:

1 . Committed
2. Assigned

3. Unassigned
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

In its governmental fimds, the only deferred inflow of resources is for revenues that are not 
considered available. The Town has two items which occur because government fund revenues are 
not recognized until available (collected not later than sixty days after the end of the Town’s fiscal 
year for property taxes, and six months for all other revenue) under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, unavailable property tax 
revenue and unavailable loans are reported in the governmental fimds balance sheet. The Town did 
not have deferred inflows of resources to report in its proprietary fund financial statements for the 
current year. 

Fund Equity 

GASB Statement 54 “Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions” provides 
fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a govemment’s 
fund balance more transparent. The following classifications describe the relative strength of the 
spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used: 

Nonspendable - Indicates the portion of fund equity that cannot be spent due to their form 
(e. g. inventories and prepaids) or funds that legally or contractually must be maintained intact. 

Restricted - Indicates the portion of fund equity that is mandated for a specific purpose by 
external parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation (e. g. Cemetery Fund, 
Reappraisal Fund, federal and state grants, bondholders, trust and trustee accounts). 

Committed — Indicates the portion of filnd equity that is set aside for a specific purpose by the 
Town’s legal voters. Formal action must be taken prior to the end of the fiscal year (e.g. 
capital projects). The same formal action must be taken to remove or change the limitations 
placed on the fimds. 

Assigged - Indicates the portion of fund equity that is set aside with the intent to be used for a 
specific purpose by the Selectboard, or body or_ official that has been given the authority to 
assign funds (e. g. encumbrances, subsequent budgets). Assigned fimds cannot cause a deficit 
in unassigned fund balance. 

Unassigned - Indicates the portion of fund equity that has not been classified in the previous 
four categories. All fimds in this category are considered spendable resources. This category 
provides the resources necessary to meet unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls. 

The Town voters establish (and modify or rescind) fimd balance commitments by passage of a 
resolution. This is typically done through adoption and amendment of the budget. A fund balance 
commitment is filrther indicated in the budget document as a designation or commitment of the fimd 
(such as special incentives). Assigned fimd balance is established by the Selectboard through 
adoption or amendment of the budget as intended for specific purpose (such as the purchase of capital 
assets, construction, debt service or other purposes). 

When an expenditure is incurred that qualifies for payment from either of the three unrestricted fimd 
balance categories, it will be applied in the following order: 

1 . Committed 
2. Assigned 
3. Unassigned 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the statement of cash flows includes amounts in demand deposits as

well as short—term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the

Town.

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at historical

cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair value as of the date received.

Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset

are capitalized.

Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets

is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements
’

30 — 50 years

Vehicles 7 — 16 years

Machinery and equipment 5 — 20 years

Infrastructure 7- 20 years

GASB No. 34 requires the Town to report and depreciate new general infrastructure assets effective

with the begirming of fiscal year 2004 and is not required to report these assets retroactively. General

infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic

signals, etc.

Interfund Activities

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans
are reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as

revenues and expenditures. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the

appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund

activities are treated as transfers. Transfers between fimds are netted in the preparation of the

govemment—wide financial statements, except for the net amounts due between governmental and

business—type activities.

Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect

certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those

estimates.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents for the statement of cash flows includes amounts in demand deposits as 
well as short-term investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the 
Town. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair value as of the date received. 
Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset 
are capitalized. 

Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets 
is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements ’ 30 — 50 years 
Vehicles ' 7 — 16 years 
Machinery and equipment 5 — 20 years 
Infiastructure 7 — 20 years 

GASB No. 34 requires the Town to report and depreciate new general infrastructure assets effective 
with the beginning of fiscal year 2004 and is not required to report these assets retroactively. General 
infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic 
signals, etc. 

Interfund Activities 

Interfimd activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans 
are reported as interfimd receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as 
revenues and expenditures. Reimbursements occur when one fimd incurs a cost, charges the 
appropriate benefiting fimd and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund 
activities are treated as transfers. Transfers between filnds are netted in the preparation of the 
government—wide financial statements, except for the net amounts due between governmental and 
business—type activities. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally acCepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those ' 
estimates. 
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NOTE 2 — CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK - DEPOSITS

The Treasurer is authorized to invest excess deposits and investments. The Town has no written

formal policy.
’

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not

be returned to it. As of June 30, 2020, none of the Town’s bank balance of $386,962 was exposed to

credit risk.

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of capital assets as of June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance Balance

June 30, 2019 Additions Depreciation June 30, 2020

Governmental Activities

Land $ 12,861 $ 0 $ 0 $ 12,861

Depreciable assets:

Buildings and improvements 546,064 0 0 546,064

Vehicles 958,837 0 0 958,837

Machinery and equipment 400,850 0 0 400,850

Infrastructure 1,068,637 63,514 0 1,132,151

Total capital assets 2,987,249 63,514 0 3,050,763

Accumulated depreciation

Buildings and improvements 154,666 0 10,908 165,574

Vehicles 338,883 0 98,675 437,558

Machinery and equipment 308,701 0 16,41 1 325 ,1 12

Infrastmcture 402,616 0 61 ,321 463,937

Total accum. depreciation 1,204,866 0 187,315 1 ,392, 181

Total capital assets, net $ 1,782,383 $ 63,514 $ (187,315) $ 1,658,582

Proprietary Fund

Land 55 8,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,000

Depreciation expense of $69,438 was included in the general government and administration expense

and $117,877 was included in the highways and streets expense in the statement of activities.

NOTE 4 — NOTE RECEIVABLE

The Town along with the Town of Hyde Park, Vermont hold a note receivable for a business located

in Lamoille County. The note calls for $1,000 a month payments at 3% through December 2026.

The Town’s share of the note receivable ($23,595) is one—third of the note, which was $70,786 at

June 30, 2020.

NOTE 5 — SHORT-TERM DEBT

The Town signed a $400,000 line of credit on July 1, 2019 with the Union Bank for tax anticipation

at a rate of 2.45% that was due June 30, 2020.
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NOTE 2 — CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK - DEPOSITS 

The Treasurer is authorized to invest excess deposits and investments. The Town has no written 
formal policy. ' 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not 
be returned to it. As of June 30, 2020, none of the Town’s bank balance of $386,962 was exposed to 
credit risk. 

NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of capital assets as of June 30, 2020 is as follows: 

Balance Balance 
June 30, 2019 Additions Depreciation June 30, 2020 

Governmental Activities 
Land $ 12,861 $ 0 $ 0 $ 12,861 
Depreciable assets: 

Buildings and improvements 546,064 0 0 546,064 
Vehicles 958,837 0 0 958,837 
Machinery and equipment 400,850 0 0 400,850 
Infrastructure 1,068,637 63,514 0 1,132,151 

Total capital assets 2,987,249 63,514 0 3,050,763 
Accumulated depreciation 

Buildings and improvements 154,666 0 10,908 165,574 
Vehicles 338,883 0 98,675 437,558 
Machinery and equipment 308,701 0 16,411 325,112 
Infiasu'ucture 402,616 0 61,321 463,937 

Total accum. depreciation 1,204,866 0 187,315 1,392,181 
Total capital assets, net $ 1,782,383 $ 63,514 $ (187,315) $ 1,658,582 

Proprietary Fund 
Land $ 8,000 $ 0 $ 0 $ 8,000 

Depreciation expense of $69,438 was included in the general government and administration expense 
and $117,877 was included in the highways and streets expense in the statement of activities. 

NOTE 4 — NOTE RECEIVABLE 

The Town along with the Town of Hyde Park, Vermont hold a note receivable for a business located 
in Lamoille County. The note calls for $1,000 a month payments at 3% through December 2026. 
The Town’s share of the note receivable ($23,595) is one-third of the note, which was $70,786 at 
June 30, 2020. 

NOTE 5 - SHORT-TERM DEBT 

The Town signed a $400,000 line of credit on July 1, 2019 with the Union Bank for tax anticipation 
at a rate of 2.45% that was due June 30, 2020. 
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NOTE 5 — SHORT-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Changes in the line of credit were as follows:

Balance — June 30, 2019 $ 0

Additions 400,000
Payments 1400,0002

Balance - June 30, 2020 $ 0

Interest paid on short—term debt in fiscal year 2020 was $9,787.

NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT

Governmental Activities

Long—term debt at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Total Due in one year

Fire truck note payable to Union Bank, semiannual

principal and interest payments of$18,154 starting

December 2016, at 2.19% interest, due June 2026. $ 203,071 $ 32,035

Truck note payable to the Union Bank, monthly principal

and interest payments of $3,473 starting November 2017,

at 1.95% interest, due October 2021. 37,534 37,534

Temporary bridge note payable to Union Bank, annual

principal and interest payments of $33,316 starting

December 2019, at 3.6% interest, due December 2023. 122,069 28,687

Capital improvement note payable to Union Bank, annual

principal and interest payments of $53,271 starting -

December 2020 at 2.15% interest, due December 2024. 250,000 47,895

Total long—term notes payable $ 612,674 $ 146,151

Changes in long-term debt were as follows:

Balance - June 30, 2019 $ 469,441

Loan proceeds 250,000
Principal payments

5
106,767!

Balance — June 30, 2020 $ 612,674

Maturities for long-term debt are as follows:

Fiscal year ending Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 146,151 $ 13,734 $ 159,885
2022 111,599 10,135 121,734
2023 114,083 7,650 121,733
2024 118,057 5,110 123,167
2025 87,104 2,479 89,583
2026—2030 35,680 594 36,274

$ 612,674 $ 39,702 $ 652,376

Interest paid on long-term debt in fiscal year 2020 was $11,623.
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NOTE 5 — SHORT-TERM DEBT (Continued) 

Changes in the line of credit were as follows: 

Balance - June 30, 2019 $ 0 
Additions 400,000 
Payments g400,0001 
Balance - June 30, 2020 $ 0 

Interest paid on short-term debt in fiscal year 2020 was $9,787. 

NOTE 6 — LON G—TERM DEBT 

Governmental Activities 

Long—term debt at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following: 

Interest paid on long-term debt in fiscal year 2020 was $11,623. 
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' Total 
Fire truck note payable to Union Bank, semiannual 

principal and interest payments of $18,154 starting , 
December 2016, at 2.19% interest, due June 2026. $ 203,071 

Truck note payable to the Union Bank, monthly principal 
and interest payments of $3,473 starting November 2017, 
at 1.95% interest, due October 2021. 37,534 

Temporary bridge note payable to Union Bank, annual 
principal and interest payments of $33,316 starting 
December 2019, at 3.6% interest, due December 2023. 122,069 

Capital improvement note payable to Union Bank, annual 
principal and interest payments of $53,271 starting - 
December 2020 at 2.15% interest, due December 2024. 250,000 
Total long—term notes payable $ 612,674 

Changes in long-term debt were as follows: 
Balance - June 30, 2019 $ 469,441 
Loan proceeds 250,000 
Principal payments 5 106,7 672 
Balance - June 30, 2020 $ 612,674 

Maturities for long-term debt are as follows: 
Fiscal year ending Principal Interest Total 
2021 $ 146,151 $ 13,734 $ 159,885 
2022 111,599 10,135 121,734 
2023 114,083 7,650 121,733 
2024 118,057 5,110 123,167 
2025 ' 87,104 2,479 89,583 
2026~203O 35,680 594 36,274 

$ 612,674 $ 39,702 $ 652,376 

Due in one year 

$ 32,035 

37,534 

28,687 

47,895 
$ 146,151 
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

During the year interfund transfers occurred between fimds. Interfund transfers for the year ended

June 30, 2020 were transfers of $75,000 from the General Fund to the Equipment Fund and $8,725

from the General Fund to the Library Fund for its annual appropriation amounts.

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

In fiscal year 2003, the Town implemented a 457 Deferred Compensation Plan. All employees of the

Town are eligible to participate in the 457 Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP). Internal Revenue
Code Sections provide the authority under which benefit provisions are established. The employees
can make voluntary contributions to the DCP up to 100% of their compensation. For 2020, an

employee under 50 can contribute up to $19,500 and those 50 and older can contribute up to $26,500.

DCP requires a minimum contribution amount of $20 per paycheck. There are no employer
contributions with a DCP.

VMERS

Plan description. The Town contributes to the Vermont Municipal Employees‘ Retirement System
(VMERS) which is a cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan that is administered

by the State Treasurer and its Board of Trustees. It is designed for school districts and other

municipal employees that work on a regular basis and also includes employees of museums and
libraries if at least half of that institution’s operating expenses are met by municipal funds. An
employee of any employer that becomes affiliated with the system may join at that time or at any
time thereafter. Any employee hired subsequent to the effective participation date of their employer
who meets the minimum hourly requirements is required to join the system. During the year ended
June 30, 2019, the retirement system consisted of 379 participating employers.

The plan was established effective July 1, 1975, and is governed by Title 24, V.S.A Chapter 125.

The general administration and responsibility for formulating administrative policy and procedures of

the retirement system for its members and their beneficiaries is vested in the Board of Trustees,

consisting of five members. They are the State Treasurer, two employee representatives elected by
the membership of the system, and two employer representatives — one elected by the governing

bodies of participating employers of the system and one selected by the Governor from a list of four

nominees. The list of four nominees is jointly submitted by the Vermont League of Cities and Towns
and the Vermont School Boards Association.

All assets are held in a single trust and are available to pay retirement benefits to all members.
Benefits available to each group are based on average final compensation (AFC) and years of
creditable service.

Summary of System Provisions

Membership is open to all full time employees of participating municipalities. The municipality

elects coverage under Groups A, B, C, or D. The Town only has Group A members.

Creditable service is service as a member plus purchased service.
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS 

During the year interfund transfers occurred between funds. Interfimd transfers for the year ended 
June 30, 2020 were transfers of $75,000 from the General Fund to the Equipment Fund and $8,725 
from the General Fund to the Library Fund for its annual appropriation amounts. 

NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

In fiscal year 2003, the Town implemented a 457 Deferred Compensation Plan. All employees of the 
Town are eligible to participate in the 457 Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP). Internal Revenue 
Code Sections provide the authority under which benefit provisions are established. The employees 
can make voluntary contributions to the DCP up to 100% of their compensation. For 2020, an 
employee under 50 can contribute up to $19,500 and those 50 and older can contribute up to $26,500. 
DCP requires a minimum contribution amount of $20 per paycheck. There are no employer 
contributions with a DCP. 

VMERS 

Plan description. The Town contributes to the Vermont Municipal Employees‘ Retirement System 
(VMERS) which is a coSt sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan that is administered 
by the State Treasurer and its Board of Trustees. It is designed for school districts and other 
municipal employees that work on a regular basis and also includes employees of museums and 
libraries if at least half of that institution’s operating expenses are met by municipal funds. An 
employee of any employer that becomes affiliated with the system may join at that time or at any 
time thereafter. Any employee hired subsequent to the effective participation date of their employer 
who meets the minimum hourly requirements is required to join the system During the year ended 
June 30, 2019, the retirement system consisted of 379 participating employers. 

The plan was established effective July 1, 1975, and is governed by Title 24, V.S.A Chapter 125. 

The general administration and responsibility for formulating administrative policy and procedures of 
the retirement system for its members and their beneficiaries is vested in the Board of Trustees, 
consisting of five members. They are the State Treasurer, two employee representatives elected by 
the membership of the system, and two employer representatives — one elected by the governing 
bodies of participating employers of the system and one selected by the Governor fiom a list of four 
nominees. The list of four nominees is jointly submitted by the Vermont League of Cities and Towns 
and the Vermont School Boards Association. 

All assets are held in a single trust and are available to pay retirement benefits to all members. 
Benefits available to each group are based on average final compensation (AFC) and years of 
creditable service. 

Summary of System Provisions 

Membership is open to all full time employees of participating municipalities. The municipality 
elects coverage under Groups A, B, C, or D. The Town only has Group A members. 

Creditable service is service as a member plus purchased service. 
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Benefits provided and contributions

Avg Final Compensation
(AFC)

Group A Group B Group C Group D
Average annual

comp ensation during

highest 5 consecutive

years

Service Retirement Allowance
Eligibility

Amount

Maximum Benefit

Earlier of age 65 with 5

years ofservice or age 55

With 35 years of service

1.4% ofAFC times

service

Average annual

comp ensation dun‘ng

highest 3 consecutive

years

Earlier of age 62 With 5

years of service or age 55
With 30 years of service

1.7% of AFC times

service as Group B
member plus percentage

eamcd as a Group A
member times AFC

60% of AFC, includingportion of allowance provided

by member contributions

Average annual

comp ensation during

highest 3 consecutive

years

Age 55 with 5 years of

service

2.5% ofAFC times

service as Group C
member plus percentage

earned as a Group A or

B member times AFC

Average annual

comp ensation during
highest 2 consecutive

years

Age 55 with 5 years of

service

2.5% of AFC times

service as Group D
member plus p ercentage

earned as a Group A, B,

or C member times AFC

50% of AFC, including portion of allowance provided

by member contributions

Early Retire ment Allowance
Age 55 with 5 years ofserviceEligibility

Amount Normal allowance based on service and AFC at early

retirement, reduced by 6% for each year

commencement precedes Normal Retirement Age

n/a

n/a

Age 50 with 20 years of

service

Normal allowance based

on service and AFC at

early retirement, without

reduction

Vested Retirement Allowance
Eligibility

Amount
5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service 5 years of service

Allowance beginning at normal retirement age based on AFC and service at termination. The AFC is to be

adjusted annually by one-half of the percentage change in the CPI, subject to the limits on "Post—Retirement

Adjustments" described below.

Disability Retirement Allowance
5 years of service and disability as determined by Retirement Board

Immediate allowance based on AFC and service to date of disability; children's benefit of 10% 0f AFC payable

to up to three minor children (or children up to age 23 if enrolled in full-time studies) of a disabled Group D

Eligibility

Amount

Death Benefit
Eligibility

Amount

member.

After 5 years of service Afier 5 years of service Afier 5 years of service

Reduced early retirement allowance under 100% survivor op tion commencing

immediately or, if greater, survivor's benefit under disability annuity computed as

of the date of death‘

After 5 years of service

70% of the unrcduced

accrued benefit plus

children's benefit

Optional Benefit and Death after Retirement
Lifetime allowance or actuarially equivalent 50% or 100% joint and survivor

allowance with refund of contributions guarantee.

Lifetime allowance or

70% contingent

annuitant option with no
reduction

Refund of Contribution Up on termination, if the member so elects or if no other benefit is pay able, the member's accumulated

contributions are refunded.

Post-Retirement Adjustments
Allowance in payment for at least one year, increased on each January 1 by one-half of the percentage increase

in CPI but not more than the followmgpercentage:

2% 3% 3% 3%
Member Contributions 2.625% eff. 7/1/18 5.0% eff. 7/1/18 10.125% eff. 7/1/18

2.75% eff 7/1/19 5.125% eff 7/1/19 10.25% eff7/1/19

ll.475% eff. 7/1/18

11.6% eff7/1/19

Employer Contributions 4.125% eff. 7/1/18

4.25% eff7/11/19

5.625% eff. 7/1/18

5.75% eff7/1/19

7.375% eff. 7/1/18

7.5% eff7/1/l9

9.975% eff. 7/1/18

10.1%eff7/l/19

Retirement Stipend $25 per month payable at the op tion of the Board of Retirees
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Benefits provided and contributions 

Avg Final Compensation 
(AFC) 

Group A 
Average annual 
comp cnsation during 
highest 5 consecutive 
years 

Service Retirement Allowance 

Gro up B 
Average annual 
compensation during 
bignest 3 consecutive 
years 

Group C 
Average annual 
comp ensation during 
highwt 3 consecutive 
years 

Group D 
Average annual 
compensation during 
highest 2 consecutive 
ym 

Eligibility Earlier of age 65 with 5 Earlier of age 62 with 5 
years of service or age 55 years of service or age 55 
with 35 yeam of service with 30 years of service 

Amount 1.4% of AFC times 1.7% of AFC times 
service service as Group B 

maniac: plus percentage 
earned as a Group A 
member times AFC 

Maximum Benefit 60% of AFC, includingportion of allowance provided 
by member contributions 

Early Retirement Allowance 
Eligibility Age 55  with 5 years of service 

Amount Normal allowance based on service and AFC at early 
refinement, reduced by 6% for each year 
commencement precedes Normal Rstirement Age 

Vested Retirement Allowance 
Eligibility 5 years of service 
Amount 

5 years of service 

Ag 55 with 5 ycars of Age 55 with 5 years of 
service service 

2.5% ofAFC times 2.5% of AFC times 
service as Group C service as Group D 
member plus perm-mag: member plus percentage 
mad as a Group A or earned as a Group A, B, 
B member times AFC or C member times AFC 

50% of AFC, including portion of allowance provided 
by member contributions 

n/a Age 50 with 20 years o f  
service 

n/a Normal allowance based 
on service and AFC at 
early retirement, Without 
reduction 

5 years of service 5 years of service 
Allowance beginning at normal retirement age based on AFC and service at termination. The AFC is to be 
adjusted annually by one-half of the percentage chang: in the CPI, subject to the limits on "Post-Retirement 
Adjustments" dwcribed below. 

Disability Retirement Allowance 
Eligibility 5 years of service and disability as detmined by Retirement Board 
Amount Immediate allowance based on AFC and service to date of disability; children's benefit of 10% of AFC payable 

to up to three minor children (or children up to  ags 23 if enrolled in full-time studies) o f  a disabled Group D 
member. 

Death Benefit 
Eligibility Afier 5 years of service Afier 5 years of service Afier 5 years of service After 5 years of service 
Amount Reduced early retirement allowance under 100% survivor option commencing 70% of the unreduced 

immediately or, if greater, survivor's benefit undcr disability annuity computed as accrued benefit plus 
of the date of death. children's benefit 

Optional Benefit and Death after Retirement 
Lifetime allowance or actuarially equivalent 50% or 100% joint and survivor 
allowance with refund of contributions guarantee. 

Refund of Contribution 
contributions arc refunded. 

Post-Retirement Adjustments 

Lifetime allowance or 
70% contingent 
annuitant option with no 
reduction 

Up on termination, if the member so elects or if no other benefit is payable, the member's accumulated 

Allowance in payment for at least one year, increased on each January 1 by one-half of the percentage increase 
in CPI but not more than the followingpercentage: 
2% 3% 3% 3% 

Member Contributions 2.625% eff. 7/1/18 5.0% eff. 7/1/18 10.125% eff. 7/1/18 ll.475% eff. 7/1/18 
2.75% eff 7/1/19 5.125% eff 7/1/19 10.25% eff7/1/19 11.6% eff>7llll9 

Employer Contributions 4.125% eff. 7/1/18 5.625% eff. 7/1/18 7.375% eff. 7/1/18 9.975% efl‘. 7/1/18 
4.25% cff7/L/l9 5.75% eff7/1/l9 7.5% eff7/l/l9 10.1% eff7/1/19 

Retirement Stipend $25 per month payable at the option of the Board of Retirees 
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020 the Town’s contributions to the Plan were $10,326.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows ofResources, and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2020 the Town reported a liability of $98,877 for its

proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30,

2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an

actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a

projection of the Town’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected

contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the Town’s

proportion was 0.05699%, which was a decrease of 0.00401% from its proportion measured as of

June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town recognized pension expense of $29,572. At June 30,

2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Difference between expected and

actual experience 33 12,810 $ 855

Changes in proportion and

differences between Town
contributions and proportionate Share

of contributions 1,251 4,947

Changes in assumptions 3 ,301 0

Difference between projected and

actual investment earnings 6,735 0

Member contributions subsequent to

the measurement date 10,326 0

Total $ 34,423 $ 5,802

Of the $34,423 of deferred outflows of resources, $10,326 was from the Town’s contributions

subsequent to the measurement date which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension

liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts ($18,295) reported as deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2021. $ 8,023

2022 3,920

2023 3,837

2024 2,515
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

For the year ended June 30, 2020 the Town’s contributions to the Plan were $10,326. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Out/lows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2020 the Town reported a liability of $98,877 for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 
2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the Town’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected 
contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the Town’s 
proportion was 0.05699%, which was a decrease of 0.00401% from its proportion measured as of 
June 30, 2018. 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town recognized pension expense of $29,572. At June 30, 
2020, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resource: 

Difference between expected and 
actual experience 39 12,810 S 855 

Changes in proportion and 
differences between Town 
contributions and proportionate share 
of contributions 1,251 4,947 

Changes in assumptions 3,301 r 0 

Difference between projected and 
actual investment earnings 6,735 0 

Member contributions subsequent to 
the measurement date 10,326 0 

Total $ 34,423 $ 5,802 

Of the $34,423 of deferred outflows of resources, $10,326 was from the Town’s contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 
liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts ($18,295) reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ending June 30, 
2021 $ 8,023 
2022 3,920 
2023 3,837 
2024 2,515 
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Interest rate of return — 7.5%, net ofpension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

Mortality:

Death in Active Service:

Groups A, B, C — 98% of RP—2006 Mortality Tables blended 60% Blue Collar Employee,

40% Healthy Employee with generational projection using Scale SSA—2017.

Group D — 100% ofRP—2006 Blue Collar Mortality Table with generational projection using

Scale SSA—2017.

Healthy Postretiremen t:

Groups A, B, C — 98% of RP-2006 Mortality Table, blended 60% Blue Collar Annuitant, 40%
Healthy Annuitant with generational projection using Scale SSA-2017.

Group D — 100% ofRP-2006 Blue Collar Annuitant Table with generational projection using

Scale SSA—2017.

Disabled Post-retirement:

All groups — RP-2006 Disabled Mortality Table with generational projection using Scale SSA—

2017.

Spouse ’5 age — females three years younger than males.

Cost ofLiving Aofiustments —1.15% for Group A members and 1.3% for Groups B, C and D
members. The January 1, 2019 and January 1, 2020 COLAs are 1.3% and .8% respectively, for all

groups.

Actuarial Cost Method — Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method. Entry Age is the age at date of

employment or, if date is unknown, current age minus years of service. Normal Cost and Actuarial

Accrued Liability are calculated on an individual basis and are allocated by salary, with Normal Cost

determined using the plan of benefits applicable to each participant.

Assets — The valuation is based on the market value of assets as of the valuation date, as provided by
the System. The System uses an “actuarial value of assets” that differs fiom market value to

gradually reflect year—to-year changes in the market value of assets in determining the contribution

requirements.

Inflation — 2.5%
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLANS (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Interest rate of return — 7.5%, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation. 

Mortality: 
Death in Active Service: 

Groups A, B, C — 98% of RP-2006 Mortality Tables blended 60% Blue Collar Employee, 
40% Healthy Employee with generational projection using Scale SSA-2017. 

Group D — 100% of RP-2006 Blue Collar Mortality Table with generational projection using 
Scale SSA—2017. 

Healthy Post-retiremen t: 
Groups A, B, C — 98% of RP-2006 Mortality Table, blended 60% Blue Collar Annuitant, 40% 
Healthy Annuitant with generational projection using Scale SSA-2017. 

Group D — 100% of RP-2006 Blue Collar Annuitant Table with generational projection using 
Scale SSA-2017. 

Disabled Post-retirement: 
All groups — RP-2006 Disabled Mortality Table with generational projection using Scale SSA- 
2017. , 

Spouse ’3 age — females three years younger than males. 

Cost of Living Adjustments —l. 15% for Group A members and 1.3% for Groups B, C and D 
members. The January 1, 2019 and January 1, 2020 COLAs are 1.3% and .8% respectively, for all 
groups. 

Actuarial Cost Method — Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method. Entry Age is the age at date of 
employment or, if date is unknown, current age minus years of service. Normal Cost and Actuarial 
Accrued Liability are calculated on an individual basis and are allocated by salary, with Normal Cost 
determined using the plan of benefits applicable to each participant. 

Assets — The valuation is based on the market value of assets as of the valuation date, as provided by 
the System The System uses an “actuarial value of assets” that'differs fiom market value to 
gradually reflect year-to-year changes in the market value of assets in determining the contribution 
requirements. 

Inflation — 2.5% 
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NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Long—term expected rate of return

The long—term expected rate of return on pension plan investments'was determined using a building-

block method in which best—estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,

net ofpension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the

expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected

inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the

pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019, is summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Global Equity 29.00% 6.90%
US Equity - Large Cap 4.00% 5.94%
US Equity — Small/Mid Cap 3.00% 6.72%
Non-US Equity - Large Cap 5.00% 6.81%
Non—US Equity - Small Cap 2.00% 7.31%
Emerging Markets Debt 4.00% 426%
Core Bond 14.00% 1.79%
Non-Core Bonds 6.00% 3.22%
Short Quality Credit 5.00% 1.81%
Private Credit 5.00% 6.00%
US TIPS 3.00% 1.45%
Core Real Estate 5.00% 4.26%
Non—Core Real Estate 3.00% 5.76%
Private Equity 10.00% 10.81%
Infrastructure/Famfland 2.00% 4.89%

100.00%

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. In

accordance with paragraph 29 of GASB 68, professional judgement was applied to determine that the

System’s projected fiduciary net position exceeds projected benefit payments for current active and

inactive members for all years. The analysis was based on the expectation that employers will

continue to contribute at the rates set by the Board, which exceed the actuarially determined

contribution, which is comprised on an employer normal cost payment and a payment to reduce the

unfianded liability to zero by June 30, 2038. Therefore, the long—term expected rate of return on

pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the

total pension liability.

The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as

what the proportionate share would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percent

lower (6.5%) or 1 percent higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease (6.5%) Discount Rate (7.5%) 1% Increase (8.5%)

$162,143 $98,877 $46,504

Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available

in the State of Vermont’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The CAFR can be

Viewed on the State’s Department of Finance and Management website.
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Long-term expected rate of return 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments‘was determined using a building— 
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
These ranges are combined to produce the long—term expected rate of return by weighting the 

V expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019, is summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 
Global Equity 29.00% 6.90% 
US Equity - Large Cap 4.00% 5.94% 
US Equity - Small/Mid Cap 3.00% 6.72% 
Non-US Equity — Large Cap 5.00% 6.81% 
Non—US Equity — Small Cap 2.00% 7.31% 
Emerging Markets Debt 4.00% 4.26% 
Core Bond 14.00% 1.79% 
Non-Core Bonds 6.00% 3.22% 
Short Quality Credit 5.00% 1.81% 
Private Credit 5.00% 6.00% 
US TIPS 3.00% 1.45% 
Core Real Estate 5.00% 4.26% 
Non-Core Rwl Estate 3.00% 5.76% 
Private Equity 10.00% 10.81% 
Infiasu'ucture/Famfland 2.00% 4.89% 

100.00% 

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. In 
accordance with paragraph 29 of GASB 68, professional judgement was applied to determine that the 
System’s projected fiduciary net position exceeds projected benefit payments for current active and 
inactive members for all years. The analysis was based on the expectation that employers will 
continue to contribute at the rates set by the Board, which exceed the actuarially determined 
contribution, which is comprised on an employer normal cost payment and a payment to reduce the 
unfunded liability to zero by June 30, 2038. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 

The following presents the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.5%, as well as 
what the proportionate share would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percent 
lower (6.5%) or 1 percent higher (8.5%) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease (6.5%) Discount Rate (7.5%) 1% Increase (8.5%) 
$162,143 $98,877 $46,504 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position. Detailed information about the Plan's fiduciary net position is available 
in the State of Vermont’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAF R). The CAFR can be 
viewed on the State’s Department of Finance and Management website. 
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NOTE 9 — PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes for the year ended June 30, 2020 were billed in August 2019 and were due

November 15, 2019 and May 15, 2020. Interest will be charged on late payments. If all taxes are not

paid by the due date, a 3% penalty will be charged for payments made 1-5 days late, a 5% penalty for

payments made 6—10 days late, and an 8% penalty for payments made 11 or more days late. The
Town bills and collects its own property taxes. The tax rates for the year ended June 30, 2020 were

as follows:

Residental Non—Residential

Town $ 0.4264 $ 0.4264

Highway 0.3358 0.3358

Education 1.6060 1.5858

35 2.3682 $ » 2.3480

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; and injuries to employees. The Town maintains commercial insurance

coverage covering each of those risks of loss. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to

preclude any significant uninsured losses to the Town. Settled claims have not exceeded this

commercial coverage in any of the past three (3) fiscal years.

NOTE 11 - RESTRICTED NET POSITION AND RESTRICTED/COMMITTED/ASSIGNED
FUND BALANCES

Net position and fund balances are restricted/committed/assigned as follows:

Restricted Rmtricted Committed Assigned

Net Position Fund Balance Fund Balance Fund Balance

Cemetery Commission $ 214 $ 214 $ 0 $ 0

Veteran's memorial 4,080 4,080 0 0

Reappraisal 65 ,461 65,461 0 0

Restoration of records 5,623 5,623 0 0

Equipment fund 0 0 62,73 5 0

Library 0 0 0 22,498

Tax mapping 0 0 0 53

Office equipment 0 0 0 3,974

No. Wolcott Rd grant match 0 0 0 6,009

Capital r&serve 0 0 20,000 4,001

Budgeted for FY21 expenses 0 0 35,579 0

Town building 0 0 0 5,800

Town Administrator position 0 0 0 43,807

Old School House restoration 0 0 0 3,258

Total $ 75,378 $ 75,378 118,314 89,400

Reduction due to fund balance shortage (6,318) (89,400)

$ 1 1 1,996 $ 0
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NOTE 9 - PROPERTY TAXES 

Property taxes for the year ended June 30, 2020 were billed in August 2019 and were due 
November 15, 2019 and May 15, 2020. Interest will be charged on late payments. If all taxes are not 
paid by the due date, a 3% penalty will be charged for payments made 1-5 days late, a 5% penalty for 
payments made 6—10 days late, and an 8% penalty for payments made 11 or more days late. The 
Town bills and collects its own property taxes. The tax rates for the year ended June 30, 2020 were 
as follows: 

Residental Non-Residential 
Town $ 0.4264 $ 0.4264 
Highway 0.3358 0.3358 
Education 1.6060 1 .5858 

$ 2.3682 $ » 2.3480 

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and injuries to employees. The Town maintains commercial insurance 
coverage covering each of those risks of loss. Management believes such coverage is sufficient to 
preclude any significant uninsured losses to the Town. Settled claims have not exceeded this 
commercial coverage in any of the past three (3) fiscal years. 

NOTE 1] - RESTRICTED NET POSITION AND RESTRICTED/COMMITTED/ASSIGNED 
FUND BALANCES 

Net position and fund balances are restricted/committed/assigned as follows: 

Rmtricted Rastricted Committed Assigned 
Net Position Fund Balance Fund Balance Fund Balance 

Cemetery Commission 33 214 $ 214 $ 0 $ 0 
Veteran's memorial 4,080 4,080 0 o 
Reappraisal 65,461 65,461 0 0 
Restoration of records 5,623 5,623 0 0 
Equipmentfimd o 0 62,735 0 
Library 0 0 0 22,498 
Tax mapping 0 0 0 53 
Office equipment 0 0 0 3,974 
No. Wolcott Rd grant match 0 0 0 6,009 
Capital raserve 0 0 20,000 4,001 
Budgeted for FY21 expenses 0 0 35,579 0 
Town building 0 O 0 5,800 
Town Administrator position 0 0 0 43,807 
Old School House restoration 0 0 0 3,258 

Total $ 75,378 $ 75,378 118,314 89,400 
Reduction due to fimd balance shortage (6,318) (89,400) 

$ 111,996 $ 0 
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NOTE 12 — EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended June 30, 2020, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the General Fund by
$3 84,963. The expenditures were financed with excess revenues, loan proceeds and fimd balance.

NOTE 13 — CONTINGENCY

The Town participates in state grant programs that are subject to audits by the grantors or their

representatives. The audits of these programs for or including the year ended June 30, 2020 have not

yet been reviewed by the grantor agencies. Accordingly, compliance with applicable grant

requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenses which may be

disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects

such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 14 — BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

The Town is not legally required to adopt a budget for the Reappraisal Fund or the Equipment Fund.

Therefore, a budgetary comparison is not presented for these fimds.

NOTE 15 — BUDGETED DEFICIT

The Town elected to budget expenditures in excess ofrevenues by $22,155 in the General Fund in

order to reduce the prior year fund balance. This is reflected as a budgeted deficiency in revenues

over expenditures on Exhibit G.

NOTE 16 — TAX ABATEMENTS

The State of Vermont operates a Current Use Program and enters into tax abatement agreements

directly with landowners. Enrolled landowners are required to manage their land in accordance with

an approved plan, and the land is subject to a lien to recover taxes abated if the land is ever

developed. In exchange, the landowners receive a reduction in assessed value on their property tax

bills, which results in a reduction of property tax revenue to the Town. For fiscal year 2020, the

amount of Town property taxes forgone as a result of the Current Use Program was approximately

$106,125. In accordance with 32 V.S.A. § 3760, the State of Vermont limits the total loss of revenue

to zero by providing the Town With a Hold Harmless payment in the following year that is equivalent

to the taxes previously foregone.

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 11, 2021, the date which the

financial statements were available for issue.

In July 2020, the Town signed a $3 80,000 tax anticipation note with Union Bank at a rate of 1.65%
that is due June 30, 2021. As of February 11, 2021, $380,000 had been drawn down.

In August 2020, the Town signed a lease purchase agreement with Caterpillar Financial Services

Corporation for the purchase of a new excavator. The lease calls for eight annual payments of

$18,316.

In January 2021, the Town signed a lease purchase agreement with Caterpillar Financial Services

Corporation for the purchase of a new grader. The lease calls for ten annual payments of $32,925.
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NOTE 12 — EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 

For the year ended June 30, 2020, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the General Fund by 
$384,963. The expenditures were financed with excess revenues, loan proceeds and fimd balance. 

NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCY 

The Town participates in state grant programs that are subject to audits by the grantors or their 
representatives. The audits of these programs for or including the year ended June 30, 2020 have not 
yet been reviewed by the grantor agencies. Accordingly, compliance with applicable grant 
requirements will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenses which may be 
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the Town expects 
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

NOTE l4 — BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

The Town is not legally required to adopt a budget for the Reappraisal Fund or the Equipment Fund. 
Therefore, a budgetary comparison is not presented for these funds. 

NOTE 15 — BUDGETED DEFICIT 

The Town elected to budget expenditures in excess of revenues by $22,155 in the General Fund in 
order to reduce the prior year fimd balance. This is reflected as a budgeted deficiency in revenues 
over expenditures on Exhibit G. 

NOTE 16 — TAX ABATEMENTS 

The State of Vermont operates a Current Use Program and enters into tax abatement agreements 
directly with landowners. Enrolled landowners are required to manage their land in accordance with 
an approved plan, and the land is subject to a lien to recover taxes abated if the land is ever 
developed. In exchange, the landowners receive a reduction in assessed value on their property tax 
bills, which results in a reduction of property tax revenue to the Town. For fiscal year 2020, the 
amount of Town property taxes forgone as a result of the Current Use Program was approximately 
$106,125. In accordance with 32 V.S.A. § 3760, the State of Vermont limits the total loss of revenue 
to zero by providing the Town with a Hold Harmless payment in the following year that is equivalent 
to the taxes previously foregone. 

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENT ‘ 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through February 11, 2021, the date which the 
financial statements were available for issue. 

In July 2020, the Town signed a $3 80,000 tax anticipation note with Union Bank at a rate of 1.65% 
that is due June 30, 2021. As of February 11, 2021, $380,000 had been drawn down. 

In August 2020, the Town signed a lease purchase agreement with Caterpillar Financial Services 
Corporation for the purchase of a new excavator. The lease calls for eight annual payments of 
$18,316. 
In January 2021, the Town signed a lease purchase agreement with Caterpillar Financial Services 
Corporation for the purchase of a new grader. The lease calls for ten annual payments of $32,925. 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual - (Unfavorable)

GENERAL GOVERNMENT .

Town Officers

Town Clerk's salary $ 10,963 $ 1 1,155 $ (192)

Assistant Town Clerk 32,000 30,417 1,583

Town Clerk fees 14,000 23,796 (9,796)

Town Treasurer's salary 21,915 22,299 (3 84)

Selectpersons 2,500 2,500 0
Selectpersons' expenseé 4,100 8,539 (4,439)

Listers 18,000 16,926 1,074

Listers' expenses 3,800 4,652 (852)

Health Officer and expenses 1,350 1,278 72
Justice of the Peace 525 525 0

Zoning and planning expense 10,500 8,749 1,751

Training 260 185 75

Health/dental insurance 31,330 14,755 16,575

Total town officers 151,243 145,776 5,467

Town Office
Office equipment 0 2,184 (2,184)

Supplies 1,800 3,005 (1,205)

Computer expense 5,690 6,327 (637)

Bookkeeping services 0 2,712 (2,712)

Equipment maintenance 0 229 (229)

Postage and telephone 3,000 4,108 (1,108)

Mileage 250 534 (284)

Newspaper notices 300 169 131

Total town office 11,040 19,268 (8,228)

Elections/Meetings/Reports

Election officials 500 729 (229)

Public notices O 20 (20)

Town report and postage 3,355 2,650 705
Total elections/meetings/reports 3,855 3,399 456

Insurance/Audit

Insurance 40,344 35,442 4,902
Audit services 13,750 16,775 (3,025)

Total insurance/audit 54,094 52,217 1,877

Taxes and Assessments

FICA 23,929 27,557 (3,628)

VT municipal retirement 10,950 9,956 994
Lamoille County tax 14,674 14,489 185

Lease land rentals 59 59 0

Total taxes and assessments 49,612 52,061 (2,449)
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 
Variance 
Favorable 

Budget Actual ‘ (Unfavorable) 
GENERAL GOVERNMENT . 
Town Officers 

Town Clerk's salary $ 10,963 $ 1 1,155 $ (192) 
Assistant Town Clerk 32,000 30,417 1,583 
Town Clerk fees 14,000 23,796 (9,796) 
Town Treasurer's salary 21,915 22,299 (384) 
Selectpersons 2,500 2,500 0 
Selectpersons' expenseé 4,100 8,539 (4,439) 
Listers 18,000 16,926 1,074 
Listers' expenses 3,800 4,652 (852) 
Health Officer and expenses 1,350 1,278 72 
Justice of the Peace 525 525 0 
Zoning and planning expense 10,500 8,749 1,751 
Training 260 185 75 
Health/dental insurance 31,330 14,755 16,575 

Total town officers 151,243 145,776 ' 5,467 

Town Office 
Office equipment 0 2,184 (2,184) 
Supplies 1,800 3,005 (1,205) 
Computer expense 5,690 6,327 (637) 
Bookkeeping services 0 2,712 (2,712) 
Equipment maintenance 0 229 (229) 
Postage and telephone 3,000 4,108 (1,108) 
Mileage 250 534 (284) 
Newspaper notices 300 169 131 

Total town office 11,040 19,268 (8,228) 

Elections/Meetings/Reports 
Election officials > 500 729 (229) 
Public notices 0 20 (20) 
Town report and postage 3,355 2,650 705 

Total elections/meetings/reports 3,855 3,399 456 

Insurance/Audit 
Insurance 40,344 35,442 4,902 
Audit services 13,750 16,775 (3,025) 

Total insurance/audit 54,094 52,217 1 ,877 

Taxes and Assessments 
FICA 23,929 27,557 (3,628) 
VT municipal retirement 10,950 9,956 994 
Lamoille County tax 14,674 14,489 185 
Lease land rentals 59 59 0 

Total taxes and assessments 49,612 52,061 (2,449) 
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TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Fuel and lights

Town Office — lights

Town Office — fuel

Town Hall — lights

Town Hall - fuel

Depot Station - lights

Depot Station - fuel

Bus barn - lights

Total fuel and lights

General Maintenance

Town Hall — repairs and maintenance

Town Hall — supplies

Town Hall — janitor

Town Office - repairs and maintenance

Total general maintenance

All Others

VLCT dues

Dog control

Interest on short-term debt

Parks and rec. dept.

Water expense

Ordinance committee

Miscellaneous expenses

Total all others

Total general government

LIBRARY
Librarian salary and benefits

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police Protection

Lamoille County Sheriff's Dept.

Communications and jail

Road patrol

Wolcott forest fire warden
Total public safety

TOWN CEMETERIES
Flags

HIGHWAY AND STREETS
Salaries and wages
Benefits
Supplies

Town garage phone
Uniforms
Tires

Parts and repairs

SCHEDULE 1

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

1,000 2,114 (1,114)

3,500 4,633 (1,133)

800 803 (3)

2,000 2,079 (79)

0 188 (188)

0 698 (698)

188 134 54

7,488 10,649 (3,161)

400 400 O

800 628 172

4,000 1,435 2,565

20,200 13,629 6,571

25,400 16,092 9,308

3,031 3,031 0

4,300 4,941 (641)

250 9,787 (9,537)

2,000 502 1,498

0 823 (823)

0 406 (406)

5,550 6,713 (1,163)

15,131 26,203 (11,072)

317,863 325,665 (7,802)

51,943 49,904 2,039

42,753 42,753 0

225,216 225,216 0
800 800 0

268,769 268,769 0

350 293 57

143,700 166,255 (22,555)

54,860 12,243 42,617

2,000 6,093 (4,093)

1,000 2,158 (1,158)

3,500 3,781 (281)

7,000 10,872 (3,872)

25,000 61,932 (3 6,932)
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Actual 

2,1 14 
4,633 

803 
2,079 

188 
698 
134 

10,649 

400 
628 

1,435 
13,629 
16,092 

3,031 
4,941 
9,787 

502 
823 
406 

6,713 
26,203 

325,665 

49,904 

42,753 
225,216 

800 
268,769 

293 

166,255 
12,243 
6,093 
2,158 
3,781 

10,872 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Budget 
Fuel and lights 

Town Office - lights 1,000 
Town Office - fuel 3,500 
Town Hall — lights 800 
Town Hall - fuel 2,000 
Depot Station - lights 0 
Depot Station - fuel 0 
Bus barn - lights 188 

Total fiwl and lights 7,488 

General Maintenance 
Town Hall - repairs and maintenance 400 
Town Hall - supplies 800 
Town Hall - janitor 4,000 
Town Office - repairs and maintenance 20,200 

Total general maintenance 25,400 

All Others 
VLCT dues 3,031 
Dog control 4,300 
Interest on short-term debt 250 
Parks and rec. dept. 2,000 
Water expense 0 
Ordinance committee 0 
Miscellaneous expenses 5,550 

Total all others 15,131 

Total general government 317,863 
LIBRARY 

Librarian salary and benefits 51,943 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
Police Protection 

Lamoille County Sheriff‘s Dept. 
Communications and jail 42,753 
Road patrol 225,216 

Wolcott forest fire warden 800 
Total public safety 268,769 

TOWN CEMETERIES 
Flags 350 

HIGHWAY AND STREETS 
Salaries and wages 143,700 
Benefits 54,860 
Supplies 2,000 
Town garage phone 1,000 
Uniforms 3,500 
Tires 7,000 
Parts and repairs 25,000 

-36— 
61,932 

SCHEDULE 1 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(1,114) 
(1,133) 

. (3) 
(79) 

(188) 
(698) 

54 
(3,161) 

o 
172 

2,565 
6,571 
9,308 

o 
(641) 

(9,537) 
1,498 
(823) 
(406) 

(1,163) 
(1 1,072) 
(7,802) 

2,039 
0

0
0

0
 

57 

(22,555) 
42,617 
(4,093) 
(1,158) 

(281) 
(3,872) 

(36,932) 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT SCHEDULE 1

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL — GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

HIGHWAY AND STREETS (Continued)

Small equipment and tools 4,000 4,454 (454)

Culverts 5,000 0 5,000
Salt - chloride — sand - gravel — clay 70,000 54,019 15,981

Gas — diesel - heat — oil 40,000 33,363 6,637
Town garage - lights 3,500 2,889 611

Outside equipment use 0 1,850 (1,850)

Cold patch 1,000 0 1,000

Winter sand 40,000 36,421 3,579

Street lights 2,550 2,566 (16)

Signs 3,000 1,787 1,213

Paving 60,000 58,949 1,051

Bridge repair 17,000 188 16,812

School Street bridge rental 2,424 2,424 0
Class 11 construction 4,500 0 4,500
Class III construction 40,000 8,915 31,085

Class IV construction 5,000 0 5,000
Flood repairs and mitigation 0 377,972 (377,972)

Guardrails 2,000 0 2,000
Miscellaneous 3,000 3,521 (521)

Total highway and streets 540,034 852,652 (312,618)

CEMETERY COMMISSIONERS
Miscellaneous 0 2,360 (2,360)

Total cemetery commissioners 0 2,360 (2,360)

SPECIAL ARTICLES
American Red Cross 500 500 0

Central Vermont Adult Basic Education 1,200 1,200 0
Central Vermont Council on Aging 1,500 1,500 0
Clarina Howard Nichols Center 500 500 0
Hardwick Rescue Squad 6,653 6,653 0
Home Share Now 400 400 0
Justice for Dogs 500 500 0

Lamoille Community Food Share 600 600 0

Lamoille County Flaming Commission 1,031 1,031 0
Lamoille County Special Investigation 1,082 1,082 0

Lamoille Economic Development Corporation 750 750 0
Lamoille Family Center 500 500 0
Lamoille Home Health & Hospice 5,028 5,028 0
LENS Meals on Wheels Program 1,400 1,400 0
Retired Senior Volunteer Program 200 200 0

Rural Community Transportation, Inc. 1,000 1,000 0
VT Rural Fire Protection 100 100 0

Total special articles 22,944 22,944 0
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Budget Actual 
HIGHWAY AND STREETS (Continued) 

Small equipment and tools 4,000 4,454 
Culverts 5,000 0 
Salt - chloride - sand — gravel - clay 70,000 54,019 
Gas — diesel - heat - oil 40,000 33,363 
Town garage - lights 3,500 2,889 
Outside equipment use 0 1,850 
Cold patch 1,000 0 
Winter sand 40,000 36,421 
Street lights 2,550 2,566 
Signs 3,000 1,787 
Paving 60,000 58,949 
Bridge repair 17,000 188 
School Street bridge rental 2,424 2,424 
Class 11 construction 4,500 0 
Class HI construction 40,000 8,915 
Class IV construction 5,000 0 
Flood repairs and mitigation 0 377,972 
Guardrails 2,000 0 
Miscellaneous 3,000 3,521 

Total highway and streets 540,034 852,652 

CEMETERY COMMISSIONERS 
Miscellaneous 0 2,360 

Total cemetery commissioners 0 2,360 
SPECIAL ARTICLES 
American Red Cross 500 500 
Central Vermont Adult Basic Education 1,200 1,200 
Central Vermont Council on Aging 1,500 1,500 
Clarina Howard Nichols Center 500 500 
Hardwick Rescue Squad 6,653 6,653 
Home Share Now 400 400 
Justice for Dogs 500 500 
Lamoille Community Food Share 600 600 
Lamoille County Flaming Commission 1,031 1,031 
Lamoille County Special Investigation 1,082 1,082 
Lamoille Economic Development Corporation 750 750 
Lamoille Family Center 500 500 
Lamoille Home Health & Hospice 5,028 5,028 
LENS Meals on Wheels Program 1,400 1,400 
Retired Senior Volunteer Program 200 200 
Rural Community Transportation, Inc. 1,000 1,000 
VT Rural Fire Protection 100 100 

Total special articles 22,944 22,944 

-37_ 

SCHEDULE 1 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

(454) 
5,000 

15,981 
6,637 

61 1 
(1,850) 
1,000 
3,579 

(16) 
1,213 
1,051 

16,812 
0 

4,500 
31,085 
5,000 

(377,972) 
2,000 
(521) 

(312,618) 

(2,360) 
(2,360) 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT SCHEDULE 1

SCHEDULEOFEXPENDHIRES
BUDGETANDACTUAL—GENERALFUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

APPROPRIATIONS
Athletic Association 2,000 2,000 O
Wolcott Cemetery Association 1 1,000 1 1,000 O
Wolcott Volunteer Fire Department 68,900 68,900 0

Total appropriations 81,900 81,900 0

DEBT SERVICE
Town debt management

Principal payments 58,923 60,009 (1,086)

Interest payments 10,702 10,381 321

Total debt service 69,625 70,390 (765)

CAPITAL OUTLAYS
Culvert — East Hill Road 0 48,757 (48,757)

Culverts - Flood grants 0 14,757 (14,757)

Total capital outlays 0 63,514 (63,514)

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfer to Equipment Fund 75,000 75,000 0
Transfer to Library Fund 8,725 8,725 0

Total Other Financing Uses 83,725 83,725 0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,437,153 $ 1,822,116 $ (384,963)
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Actual 

2,000 
1 1,000 
68,900 
81,900 

60,009 
10,381 
70,390 

48,757 
14,757 
63,514 

75,000 
8,725 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES 
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Budget 
APPROPRIATIONS 
Athletic Association 2,000 
Wolcott Cemetery Association 1 1,000 
Wolcott Volunteer Fire Department 68,900 

Total appropriations 81,900 

DEBT SERVICE 
Town debt management 

Principal payments 58,923 
Interest payments 10,702 

Total debt service 69,625 

CAPITAL OUTLAYS 
Culvert — East Hill Road 0 
Culverts - Flood grants 0 

Total capital outlays 0 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfer to Equipment Fund 75,000 
Transfer to Library Fund 8,725 

Total Other Financing Uses 83,725 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 1,437,153 
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83,725 

$ 1,822,116 

SCHEDULE 1 

Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

C
O

C
O

 

(1,086) 
321 

(765) 

(48,757) 
(14,757) 
(63,514) 

0 
O 
0 

$ (384,963) 



TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT
SCHEDULES 0F TOWN‘S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

AND TOWN CONTRIBUTIONS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

VERMONT EMPLOYEES MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT PLAN
AS OF MEASUREMENT DATE JUNE 30,

Town's proportion of the net

pension liability (asset)

Town's proportionate share of

the net pension liability (asset)

Town's covered—employee payroll

Town's proportionate share of the net

pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of its covered-employee payroll

Plan fiducialy net position as a

percentage of the total pension

liability

2019 2018

0.0570% 0.0610%

3 98,877 $ 85,732

$ 265,450 $ 266,861

37.25% 32.13%

80.35% 82.60%

2017 2016 2015 2014

0.0649% 0.0600% 0,0628% 0.0744%

98 78,626 $ 77,199 $ 48,394 $ 6,794

$ 264,952 $ 227,921 $ 219,228 $ 240,049

29.68% 33.87% 22.07% 2.83%

83.64% 80.95% 87.42% 98.32%

SCHEDULE OF TOWN CONTRIBUTIONS
VERMONT EMPLOYEES MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT PLAN

SCHEDULE 2

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Contractually required contributions 33 10,366 $ 10,950 $ 10,675 $ 10,598 $ 9,1 17 $ 8,769 $ 9,602 S 9,593

Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (10,366) (10,950) (10,675) (10,598) (9,117) (8,769) (9,602) (9,593)

Contn'bution deficiency (excess) $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0

Town's covered-employee payroll $ 243,915 $ 265,450 $ 266,861 $ 264,952 $ 227,921 $ 219,228 $ 240,049 $239,834

Contributions as a percentage of

covered—employee payroll 4.250% 4.125% 4.000%

-39-

4.000% 4.000% 4.000% 4.000% 4.000%

TOWN OF WOLCOTT, VERMONT 
SCHEDULES OF TOWN‘S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

AND TOWN CONTRHBUTIONS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE 
OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

VERMONT EMPLOYEES MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT PLAN 

Town's proportion of the net 
pension liability (asset) 

Town's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability (asset) 

Town's covered-employee payroll 

Town's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) as a percentage 
of its covered-employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total pension 
liability 

AS OF MEASUREMENT DATE JUNE 30, 

2019 2018 2017 2016 

0.0570% 0.0610% 0.0649% 0.0600% 

3 98,877 $ 85,732 $ 78,626 $ 77,199 

$ 265,450 $ 266,861 $ 264,952 $ 227,921 

37.25% 32.13% 29.68% 33.87% 

80.35% 82.60% 83.64% 80.95% 

SCHEDULE OF TOWN CONTRIBUTIONS 
VERMONT EMPLOYEES MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT PLAN 

2020 

Contractually required contributions 3 10,366 

Conuibutions in relation to the 
contractually required contribution (10,366) 

Contn'bution deficiency (excess) $ 0 

Town's covered-employee payroll $ 243,915 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 4.250% 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 

2019 2018 2017 2016 

$ 10,950 $ 10,675 $ 10,598 $ 9,117 

(10,950) (10,675) (10,598) (9,117) 

$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 

$ 265,450 $ 266,861 $ 264,952 $ 227,921 

4.125% 4.000% 4.000% 4.000% 
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2015 

0.0628% 

3 48,394 

$ 219,228 

22.07% 

87.42% 

2015 

$ 8,769 

(8,769) 

$ 0 

$ 219,228 

4.000% 

2014 

0.0744% 

$ 6,794 

$ 240,049 

2.83% 

98.32% 

2014' 

$ 9,602 

(9,602) 

$ 0 

$ 240,049 

4.000% 

SCHEDULE 2 

2013 

$ 9,593 

(9,593) 

$ 0 

$239,834 

4.000% 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

To the Selectboard

Town of Wolcott

Wolcott, Vermont

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States

ofAmerica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the

governmental activities, the business—type activities, each major fund and the aggregate

remaining fund information of the Town of Wolcott, Vermont, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the

Town's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 11, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town's

internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions

on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Town's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to

prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such

that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial

statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that

is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Selectboard 
Town of Wolcott 
Wolcott, Vermont 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Town of Wolcott, Vermont, as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
Town's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 11, 2021. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Town's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operatidn of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fimctions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. 

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such 
that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely. basis. 

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that 
is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph

of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant

deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in

internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may
exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town‘s financial statements are flee
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of

laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a

direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not

express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances ofnoncompliance or

other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of

the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s

internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other

purpose.

Respectfully submitted,ngyh ,3 Vidaog‘éirflfi:

FOTHERGILL SEGALE & VALLEY, CPAs
Montpelier, Vermont
Vermont Public Accountancy License #110

February 11, 2021
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may 
exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Respectfully submitted 

F OTHERGILL SEGALE & VALLEY, CPAs 
Montpelier, Vermont 
Vermont Public Accountancy License #110 

February 11, 2021 
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